


























1 
 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION                ORGANIZATION 
Job Description                                                              No. 213.1                                                   

              

PERSONNEL TECHNICIAN 

DEFINITION 

Under the general or direct supervision of the Business Manager or designee, the 
Personnel Technician serves as the recruitment officer, coordinates the human 
resources procedures and practices and is responsible for personnel records for the 
Sierra County Office of Education and Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 
employees. The person in this position works in the administrative office. No 
supervisory responsibilities. 

EXAMPLES OF DUTIES 

Personnel assigned to this position primarily provide the following services: 

 Initiate and produce recruitment advertisements for employment opportunities 
 Organize interview committee and interview schedule; contact applicants 
 Maintain seniority and substitute lists 
 Maintain all employee confidential personnel documents 
 Conduct new employee orientation and training 
 Consult with supervisor(s) to determine placement of staff on applicable salary 

schedule 
 Process fingerprint clearance for new employees and volunteers; serve as 

custodian of record for reporting purposes 
 Collaborate with Superintendent and/or Site Administrator on employee discipline 

and evaluation; maintain confidential files 
 Serve as primary credentialing information resource for certificated employees 
 Review certificated contracts and classified annual agreements  
 Monitor certificated staff credentialing and annual assignments 
 Prepare and submit credentialing reports 
 Counsel with Account Technician III on various salary schedules and payroll 

matters 
 Organize meetings with employee and/or negotiating groups 
 Maintain employee group bargaining agreements; assist in developing language 

for negotiations and other related employee group correspondence 
 Monitor and maintain employees’ performance evaluation records 
 Consult with administrators on a wide variety of sensitive personnel issues 
 Maintain employee and retiree health insurance records 
 Organize annual open enrollment period; coordinate special programs for health 

insurance company 
 Maintain workers’ compensation claims and records 



2 
 

 Co-chair health and safety committee 
 Maintain transportation (bus driver) records and Transportation Safety Plan 
 Coordinate transportation schedules with drivers and school personnel 
 Participate in meetings, workshops and trainings related to human resources 

management as directed by supervisor 
 Performs other similar duties as necessary 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 

Competencies required to perform the requirements of the job include: 

 Effective verbal and written communication skills  
 Effectively plan and manage projects 

 Be a resourceful person who adapts to various tasks and schedules 

 Operate standard office equipment; proficient in computer operations and 
software applications  

 Knowledge of best practices, laws and regulations pertinent to human resources 
and personnel  

 Administer personnel policies and procedures; orientation and training 

 Possess interpersonal skills in the areas of collaboration, group planning and 
decision-making processes 

 Work well without close supervision 

 Maintain a high level of integrity and confidentiality at all times 

Ability to: 

 Research and comprehend California laws and Education Code pertaining to 
human resources and fair employment practices 

 Create a climate of trust and respect in the workplace 

 Establish and maintain effective working relationships 

 At all times be courteous with employees and others 

 Work independently with discretion and confidentiality 

 Maintain accurate records and files 

WORKING CONDITIONS 

 Customary business/administrative office environment 

PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS 

 Hearing and speaking to exchange information in person and/or telephone 

 Light lifting 

 Climbing stairs or ramps 

 Reaching overhead and above the shoulders  
 Pushing, pulling and carrying objects 

 Bending at waist, kneeling and squatting 

 Dexterity of arms, hands and fingers to operate equipment, devices and vehicle 



3 
 

EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE 

 Possess a high school diploma or equivalent to graduation from high school 
 Graduate or course work from an accredited college or university in human 

resources, personnel management, or related field of study. Education 
requirement may be fulfilled with a combination of experience and course work in 
related subject areas 

 Minimum two (2) years’ experience in human resources or a business/administrative 
office position requiring frequent public contact 

 California Department of Motor Vehicles driver’s license and acceptable driving 
record  

 Physical fitness clearance may be required 

This job description is not intended to be an exhaustive list of all duties, knowledge or 
abilities associated with this classification but intended to accurately reflect the principal 
elements of the position. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Revision 

Presented to Sierra County Board of Education by the Sierra County Superintendent of 
Schools on December 11, 2018 

 

 

 z:job description/SCOE_Personnel Technician_Nov 2018 

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION                ORGANIZATION 
Job Description                                                              No. 227                                                   
 
   

1 
 

 

ADULT EDUCATION COORDINATOR 
 

DEFINITION 
 
Under the direction of the County Superintendent of Schools, assist in the planning, 
organizing, and monitoring of the operations and activities of the adult education 
programs with an emphasis on the Adult Education Program (AEP); coordinate 
operations, communications and personnel to enhance program effectiveness and 
student learning and achievement; supervise and evaluate the performance of assigned 
personnel.  Reports to the County Superintendent of Schools. 
 
EXAMPLES OF DUTIES 
 
Personnel assigned to this position primarily provide the following services:  
  

 Lead the development of an adult education program in the Sierra County region 
 Assist in the planning, organizing, and monitoring of the operations and activities 

of the adult education programs; assure program activities comply with 
established laws, rules, regulations and grant specifications 

 Provide critical support to site administrators and understanding of the Adult 
Education Program (AEP) and how the program is administered from the State 
level 

 Provide direct classroom instruction across the region while the adult education 
program is being developed 

 Monitor operations, communications and personnel to enhance program 
effectiveness and student learning and achievement; collaborate with 
administrators, staff and outside organizations, and Feather River Adult 
Education Consortium Member Districts in the planning, development and 
implementation of adult education programs and activities 

 Supervise and evaluate the performance of assigned staff; interview and select 
employees and recommend transfers, reassignment, termination and disciplinary 
actions; assign employee duties and review work to assure compliance with 
established guidelines and procedures 

 Monitor and evaluate adult education programs and assigned functions for 
effectiveness and operational efficiency; assist in the development and 
implementation of programs, curriculum, policies and procedures to enhance 
educational effectiveness and operational efficiency 

 Collaborate with other departments in the preparation, review and evaluation of 
grants; organize and direct federal and State grant-funded projects related to 
adult education programs (including, but not limited to Perkins and WIOA); 
coordinate and assure proper disbursement of local, State and federal funds 

 
  

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION                ORGANIZATION 
Job Description                                                              No. 227                                                   
 
   

2 
 

 
 Provide technical expertise, information and assistance to administrators 

regarding program needs, issues and functions; assist in the formulation and 
development of policies, procedures and programs 

 Prepare and maintain a variety of narrative and statistical reports, records and 
files related to adult education programs (as required by law), instructional 
materials, students, financial activity, grants, personnel and assigned duties  

 Communicate with other administrators, personnel, outside organizations and the 
public to coordinate activities and programs, resolve issues and conflicts and 
exchange information 

 Review and write Adult Education Program reports with special focus on State 
and Consortium reports 

 Evaluate Certificated and Classified staff 
 Visit schools and outlying sites 
 Be familiar with State and Consortium rules and regulation 
 Implement Adult Education best practices, manage professional development, 

and ensure alignment to State AEP guidance 
 Attend a variety of meetings as assigned; attend and participate in a variety of 

local, regional and State committees, boards and councils as directed 
 
KNOWLEDGE AND ABILITIES 
 
This is a certificated administrative position requiring experience with Adult Education.  
 
KNOWLEDGE OF:  
 

 Adult Learning Theory, HSE implementation, CASAS/TOPSpro administration, 
CCRS alignment, and Distance Learning implementation 

 Planning, organizing and monitoring of adult education program 
 State guidelines and requirements concerning adult education programs 
 Practices, procedures and techniques involved in the development and 

implementation of integrated adult education programs 
 Instructional techniques, strategies and professional development activities 

related to adult education programs to create a data-driven instructional program  
 Policies and objectives of assigned programs and activities 
 Organizational operations, policies and objectives 
 Oral and written communication skills 
 Principles and practices of administration, supervision and training 
 Applicable laws, codes, regulations, policies and procedures 
 Interpersonal skills using tact, patience and courtesy 
 The use and effective applications of a variety of current technology devices 
 Technical aspects of field of specialty 

 
     



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION                ORGANIZATION 
Job Description                                                              No. 227                                                   
 
   

3 
 

  
ABILITY TO: 
 

 Assist in the planning, organizing, and monitoring of the operations and activities 
of the adult education programs under AB104 

 Coordinate operations, communications and personnel to enhance program 
effectiveness and student learning and achievement 

 Supervise and evaluate the performance of assigned personnel 
 Communicate effectively both orally and in writing  
 Interpret, apply and explain rules, regulations, policies and procedures 
 Establish and maintain cooperative and effective working relationships with 

others 
 Use with fluency a variety of current technological devices related to the work  
 Analyze situations accurately and adopt an effective course of action 
 Meet schedules and timelines. Work independently with little direction 
 Plan and organize work 
 Prepare comprehensive narrative and statistical reports 
 Maintain of a variety of reports, records and files related to assigned activities 
 Operate a variety of office equipment including a computer and assigned 

software 
 

WORKING CONDITIONS 
 

 Indoor work environment, including office and classroom. Driving a vehicle to 
conduct work  
 

PHYSICAL DEMANDS  
 
 Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate equipment, devices, keyboard 
 Seeing to read a variety of materials 
 Sitting or standing for extended periods of time 
 Light lifting 
 Climbing stairs or ramps 
 Bending at waist, kneeling and squatting 
 Hearing and speaking to exchange information and make presentations  
 
MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 
 

 Bachelor’s Degree 
 Teaching or Administrative experience (minimum 3 years) 
 Administrative services credential 
 
 
 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION                ORGANIZATION 
Job Description                                                              No. 227                                                   
 
   

4 
 

 
DESIRED: Master's degree 
 
 Three (3) years of classroom teacher at a career technical school or adult 

education 
 Adult school level experience 
 
This job description is not intended to be an exhaustive list of all duties, knowledge or 
abilities associated with this classification but intended to accurately reflect the principal 
elements of the position 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Presented to the Sierra County Board of Education by the Sierra County Superintendent 
of Schools on December 11, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 

Z:job description/SCOE Adult Education Coordinator_Nov 2018 
 
 
 



Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2018/19Balances through November

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund   

1100 230,761.00 230,761.00 173,310.90 78,952.22 21,502.12-Teachers Salaries

1115 60.00 60.00-Certificated Extra Duty

1120 75,787.00 75,787.00 89,907.50 14,120.50-Certificated Substitutes

1200 43,846.00 43,846.00 25,576.81 18,269.15 .04 Certificated Pupil Support Ser

1300 199,167.00 199,167.00 140,007.84 100,005.60 40,846.44-Certificated Supervisor Admini

1310 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 Teacher in Charge

Total for Object 1000 559,561.00 559,561.00 338,895.55 287,194.47 66,529.02-

2100 120,916.00 120,916.00 70,554.42 34,755.63 15,605.95 Instructional Aides' Salaries

2115 588.00 588.00 520.96 67.04 Classified Extra Duty

2120 8,000.00 8,000.00 3,094.72 4,905.28 Classified Substitutes

2200 28,844.00 28,844.00 7,517.61 5,953.15 15,373.24 Classified Support Salaries

2215 771.78 771.78-Classified Support Extra Duty

2300 95,174.00 95,174.00 54,992.00 39,505.00 677.00 Classified Supervisors' Admini

2400 144,227.00 144,227.00 48,653.03 57,308.96 38,265.01 Clerical Technical Office Staf

2420 250.00 250.00 250.00 Clerical Substiture

2900 16,448.00 16,448.00 1,067.00 15,381.00 Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 414,447.00 414,447.00 181,717.06 142,977.20 89,752.74 

3101 114,331.00 114,331.00 54,659.36 32,461.42 27,210.22 STRS Certificated Positions

3102 749.00 749.00 524.44 240.60 16.04-STRS Classified Positions

3202 73,152.00 73,152.00 32,947.10 27,268.73 12,936.17 PERS Classified Positions

3301 155.00 155.00 7.44 147.56 OASDI Certificated Positions

3302 23,803.00 23,803.00 10,044.18 8,279.90 5,478.92 OASDI Classified Positions

3311 7,488.00 7,488.00 4,634.21 4,012.55 1,158.76-Medicare Certificated Position

3312 5,884.00 5,884.00 2,572.59 2,032.47 1,278.94 Medicare Classified Positions

3401 111,502.00 111,502.00 71,819.51 39,678.49 4.00 Health & Welfare Benefits Cert

3402 124,277.00 124,277.00 64,453.61 45,286.71 14,536.68 Health & Welfare Benefits Clas

3501 277.00 277.00 169.47 144.20 36.67-SUI Certificated

3502 209.00 209.00 90.97 70.94 47.09 SUI Classified

3601 19,974.00 19,974.00 10,699.15 6,418.33 2,856.52 Workers' Compensation Certific

3602 15,100.00 15,100.00 5,939.57 4,692.30 4,468.13 Workers' Compensation Classifi

Total for Object 3000 496,901.00 496,901.00 258,554.16 170,594.08 67,752.76 

4100 672.00 672.00 672.00 Approved Textbooks Core Curric

4200 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Library and Reference Material

4300 71,970.00 71,970.00 2,433.12 13,628.20 55,908.68 Materials and Supplies

4320 600.00 600.00 600.00 Custodial Grounds Supplies

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2019, Period = 5, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 1 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Nov 29 2018  9:19AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1115
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2115
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2215
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2420
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3102
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3301
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4320


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2018/19Balances through November

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund    (continued)

4330 1,000.00 1,000.00 165.01 398.15 436.84 Office Supplies

4350 5,500.00 5,500.00 1,483.47 140.98 3,875.55 Vehicle Upkeep

4400 23,311.00 23,311.00 1,635.08 21,675.92 Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 104,053.00 104,053.00 4,081.60 15,802.41 84,168.99 

5100 43,000.00 43,000.00 34,220.00 8,780.00 Subagreements for Services

5200 44,755.00 44,755.00 8,519.09 10,466.08 25,769.83 Travel and Conference

5300 19,631.00 19,631.00 1,653.31 11,387.33 6,590.36 Dues and Membership

5400 9,600.00 9,600.00 9,434.00 166.00 Insurance

5500 9,200.00 9,200.00 4,644.86 1,828.38 2,726.76 Operation Housekeeping Service

5600 3,100.00 3,100.00 505.86 375.04 2,219.10 Rentals, Leases, Repairs, Nonc

5801 20,500.00 20,500.00 6,312.50 6,022.50 8,165.00 Legal Services

5803 500.00 500.00 500.00 Legal Publications

5805 793.00 793.00 200.00 593.00 Personnel Expense

5806 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Negotiations

5808 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,048.05 451.95 .00 Other Services & Fees

5810 457,092.00 457,092.00 210,786.95 133,879.27 112,425.78 Contracted Services

5899 3,214.77 67.00 3,281.77-SPJUSD to Reimburse

5900 5,200.00 5,200.00 5,450.88 4,293.51 4,544.39-Communications

Total for Object 5000 615,871.00 615,871.00 276,556.27 178,205.06 161,109.67 

6170 290,000.00 290,000.00 150,899.00 141,922.25 2,821.25-LAND IMPROVEMENTS

6200 7,664.00 7,664.00 7,664.00 Building and Improvement of Bu

6400 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 Equipment

Total for Object 6000 317,664.00 317,664.00 150,899.00 141,922.25 24,842.75 

7110 3,119.00 3,119.00-County Tuition Inter Dist Agre

7141 24,428.00 24,428.00 24,428.00 Tuition, excess cost etc betwe

7310 .00 Direct Support/Indirect Costs

Total for Object 7000 24,428.00 24,428.00 .00 3,119.00 21,309.00 

382,406.89 2,532,925.00 2,532,925.00 1,210,703.64 939,814.47 Total for Fund 01 and Expense accounts

Fund 16 - FOREST RES   

7619 52,121.00 52,121.00 52,121.00 Other Authorized Interfund Tra

52,121.00 52,121.00 52,121.00 .00 .00 Total for Fund 16, Expense accounts and Object 7000

434,527.89 2,585,046.00 2,585,046.00 1,210,703.64 939,814.47 Total for Org 001 - Sierra County Office of Education

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2019, Period = 5, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 2 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Nov 29 2018  9:19AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4330
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4350
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5801
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5803
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5805
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5806
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5808
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5899
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6170
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7110
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7141
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=107088&p2=1&p3=16&p8=Fund&p7=7619


1 
SCOE Minutes 

November 13, 2018 

MINUTES FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

November 13, 2018 
Sierra County Office of Education, 109 Beckwith Rd., Loyalton, CA 96118 
Videoconferenced to Downieville School, 130 School St, Downieville CA 95936 

5:00pm Closed Session 
6:00pm Regular Session 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 

President PATTY HALL called the meeting to order at 5:02pm. 

B. ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Patty Hall, President 
  Allen Wright, Vice President 
  Sharon Dryden, Clerk 
  Mike Moore, Member 
  Jenny Gant, Member 
 
ABSENT: None 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
WRIGHT motioned to approve agenda with exception of removing item E, 2 due to no actual 
conference with legal counsel taking place. Second by MOORE. 
5/0 

D. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR CLOSED SESSION 

1. Current location – none 
2. Videoconference location – none 

E. CLOSED SESSION—5:10pm 
MOORE/GANT 
5/0 

The Board of Trustees, Superintendent Dr. Merrill Grant and Business Manager Nona Griesert 
moved into Closed Session at 5:02pm to discuss the following item(s): 

1. Government Code 54957.6 
CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 

Agency Negotiator for the Board: Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent 
Employee Organizations: 
 Represented Employees:  Sierra-Plumas Teachers’ Association 
 Unrepresented Employees:  Classified Employees 
     Confidential Employees 
     Administrative Employees 

2. Government Code 54956.9 
 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) or (3) of subdivision (d) of 
Section 54956.9: 2 cases 
a. Case # 11153 

 
F. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION at 6:00pm and ADJOURN FOR BREAK 

 
G. RECONVENE at 6:03pm 

 
H. FLAG SALUTE 



2 
SCOE Minutes 

November 13, 2018 

 
I. REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

MOORE: Item 2—stricken from agenda, did not discuss. Item 1—discussed ideas on how to 
present the Board’s side of negotiations with the group meeting at the end of November. 

 
J. CORRESPONDENCE 

1. Secure Rural Schools October-November Action 

K. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

1. Superintendent’s Report 

a. Report from October California County Superintendents Educational Services 
Association (CCSESA) meeting 
Lots of chatter around coming elections since county superintendents are 
elected officials 
Movement with county offices of education and their respective school districts 
coming together to work together on Differentiated Assistance—want get 
outside agencies to come in to Sierra county, let us know how we’re doing, 
make sure we’re working in the right direction; try to tap into resources and 
potential state funds/grants related to Differentiated Assistance 

b. Impact of November 6th Midterm Election on K-12 Education 
Welcome Andy Genasci as next Board member replacing Sharon Dryden at 
next meeting in December 
New Governor for first time in 8 years—we’ll be paying attention to see what 
the new budget looks like when it rolls out in early January 
State Superintendent ballot-count is not complete yet, so no clear winner just yet 

2. Business Report 

a. Account Object Summary-Balance from 07/01/2018 to 10/31/2018 
b. CDE approval of emergency days in 2017-18 
c. Holiday Closures – Sierra County Office of Education closed to public: 

1. November 22 and 23, 2018 
2. December 24, 2018 through January 4, 2019 (returning January 7) 

3. Staff Reports 

a. SELPA—BETHKE: Attended Transition Alliance Conference last week—
focus was on transition for students with special needs out of school into work 
and independent living; lots of information as well about forming local 
partnership agreements with the Regional Center and Department of Rehab 
LES currently advertising for Special Ed Teacher to alleviate current caseload 
and serve a wider variety of needs in the school 
Community Advisory Committee meeting was held last week—bring parents 
and school staff together; speaker on IEPs at last week’s meeting 

b. Curriculum—MESCHERY: **handout attached on Teaching and Learning: 

We are all Learners presentation—framing Curriculum and Instruction 
practices and development around Robert Marzano’s strategies on The New 
Art and Science of Teaching—get students more engaged in their learning 

4. Board Member Reports 

a. WRIGHT: Daughter affected by fire—teaches in Paradise…many homes lost, 
school still standing, but no students around now to attend because of homes 
lost. Be grateful for our progressing curriculum program while there are 
students that can’t attend school right now due to the current fires. 



3 
SCOE Minutes 

November 13, 2018 

 
5. Public Comment 

a. Videoconference location – none 
b. Current location – 

1. Stephanie Shelby: Soccer team started this season; did fundraising this 
year to try and invest in fixing up existing soccer field ($3500-$4000); 
asking for the Board to discuss and consider building a new soccer field 
– many community members willing to volunteer time and/or materials. 
Donations being taken at the high school for fire victims in Paradise. 

2. Melanie Christian: Have a Special Ed student in SPJUSD. Happy to see 
such great interest in Special Ed program improvement and development. 
Would benefit the general ed staff to be trained by strong Special Ed 
program and learn skills/tactics to work with Special Ed students in the 
general ed environment. 

3. SSF—MESCHERY: A number of field trips taking place funded by 
Sierra Schools Foundation; newsletter coming out soon with more updates 

 
L. CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Approval of minutes for the Regular Board Meeting held October 9, 2018 
2. Approval of Board Report-Checks Dated 10/01/2018 through 10/31/2018 
MOORE/WRIGHT 
5/0 
 

M. ACTION ITEMS 

1. New Business  

a. In accordance with Rodda Act, the Sierra-Plumas Teachers Association is 
Sunshining their proposal for the 2018-2019 school year 
Discussion only—meeting with SPTA November 28 to start negotiation process 

b. Acceptance of Letter of Retirement from Susan Roberts, Personnel Technician, 
Retirement Date Effective: December 31, 2018 
MOORE/DRYDEN 
5/0 

c. Authorization to fill Personnel Technician position, 1.0 FTE 
WRIGHT/GANT 
5/0 

d. Discussion of Adult Education Plan 2018-2019 
Discussion only—Dr. Grant meeting with Adult Ed Consortium November 14 
to propose plan to approve and release funding to Sierra County for Adult 
Education Program; hoping to implement distance learning program in 
January, but at least get a coordinator hired as soon as possible to roll out a 
program to serve Sierra County.  

BOARD POLICIES AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS 

e. Board Policy 1100—Communication with the Public, revisions 
MOORE/DRYDEN 
5/0 

f. Board Policy 3290—Gifts, Grants and Bequests, revisions 
DRYDEN/WRIGHT 
5/0 

g. Board Policy 3320—Claims and Actions Against the District, revisions 



4 
SCOE Minutes 

November 13, 2018 

h. Administrative Regulation 3320—Claims and Actions Against the District, revisions 
MOORE/GANT (g-h) 
5/0 
i. Administrative Regulation 3460—Financial Reports and Accountability, revisions 

MOORE/GANT 
5/0 

j. Board Policy 4114—Transfers, revisions 
WRIGHT/MOORE 
5/0 

k. Board Policy 5141.6—School Health Services, revisions 
MOORE/WRIGHT 
5/0 

l. NEW Administrative Regulation 5141.6—School Health Services 
DRYDEN/WRIGHT 
5/0 

m. Board Policy 5144.1—Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process, revisions 
DRYDEN/WRIGHT (Option 1) 
5/0 

n. Administrative Regulation 5144.1—Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process, revisions 
DRYDEN/WRIGHT 
5/0 

o. Board Policy 6145.2—Athletic Competition, revisions 
MOORE/WRIGHT 
5/0 

p. Administrative Regulation 6145.2—Athletic Competition, revisions 
MOORE/DRYDEN 
5/0 

q. Board Bylaw 9110—Terms of Office, revisions 
MOORE/WRIGHT 
5/0 

N. ADVANCED PLANNING 

1. Next Regular Board Meeting will be held on December 11, 2018 at Downieville School, 
130 School St, Downieville CA 95936 beginning with Closed Session, as needed, at 
5:00pm and the Regular Board Meeting at 6:00pm. 

2. Suggested Agenda Items 

a. Special Ed Report (presentation from Heidi Bethke) 
b. Soccer field update if any 

 
O. ADJOURN at 7:13pm 

MOORE/WRIGHT 
5/0 

 
 
 

_______________________________  _______________________________ 
Sharon Dryden, Clerk    Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent 





WE ARE ALL LEARNERS 

TEACHING & LEARNING

 
The Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District’s Department of Curriculum & Instruction is dedicated to supporting the District’s 
vision that 

.
 
The Curriculum and Instruction Department envisions students who are  and who can analyze 
problems from many different angles and communicate effectively in a 21st Century world to be  It is 
committed to ensuring educators and leaders feel supported in their efforts to improve standards-based teaching and learning in an 
environment that celebrates transformational instructional practices reaching all students where they are academically, socially and 
emotionally.
 



 WHAT TEACHING STRATEGIES THAT SHOULD BE 
PRESENT IN EVERY CLASSROOM? 

● Feedback Strategies

● Content Strategies

● Context Strategies



“Instructional strategies are 
best likened to techniques 
an artist might develop and 
refine over years of 
practice.”
      Robert J. Marzano, 2017





CURRENT WORK AND NEXT STEPS TIMELINE

● Sept. - Nov. 2018 • Content Strategy Work: Direct Instruction Lessons
• Feedback Strategy Work: Providing Scales and Rubrics, Tracking Student Progress

■ Use Early Release Wednesdays to do school-wide/district-wide workshops.
■ Meet with teachers individually to go over goal-setting and implementation 

plans.
■ Based on teachers’ needs, work directly with teachers in their classrooms 

team-teaching, modeling, and supporting.

● Dec. - March 2018/19 • Context Strategy Work: Implementing Rules & Procedures 

● April - June 2019 • Feedback Strategy Work: Providing Scales and Rubrics, Tracking Student Progress, 
  Celebrating Success. 

■ Begin to set the ground for the 2019/2020 Goals



S i e r ra - P l um as  Te a c h er s  Ass o c ia t i on  
( C T A / N E A )  

Initial Bargaining Proposal for Sunshine 
2018-19 School Year 

The S i e r r a - P l u m a s  T e a c h e r s  A s s o c i a t i o n  hereby submits the following initial 
proposal for a successor collective bargaining agreement with the Sierra-Plumas Unified School 
District. All agreements reached on individual items shall be tentative, subject to a final tentative 
agreement on the contract. Absent a final agreement modifying the contract, the existing 
contract language shall remain in full effect. 
 
The Sierra-Plumas Teachers Association reserves the right to create, add to, delete from, amend, 
and modify its proposals and/or open articles of the contract during the negotiations process. 
Unless otherwise indicated, proposals are in conceptual format.  
 
Article 1.  Agreement 

• Update the term of the agreement. 
Article 2. Recognition 

• Add additional non-management certificated positions to the recognition clause. 

Article 3. Days and Hours of Employment 

• Updated language to match agreements reached in the 2017-18 tentative agreement. 

• Update outdated and irrelevant information and dates. 

Article 4.  Class Size 

• Update language to follow state Grade Span Adjustment (GSA) language so SPUSD 
qualifies for GSA funding. 

• Establish class sizes and caseloads achieving optimal educator-to-student ratios. 
Article 7.  Organizational Security 

• Review all language and relevancy to current law and agreements; especially as it 
deals with bargaining unit employees’ membership in the SPTA. 

Article 10. Leaves of Absence 

• Update and review leave language to be in compliance with current law; specifically, 



in regard to AB 375 parental and maternal child bonding leave. 

Article 11.  Health Benefits 

• Provide health benefits for unit members and their families which are affordable and 
provide high quality care options compared to other county and state school districts. 

Article 12. Salary (and all relevant appendixes) 

• Increase wages and stipends to compete with comparable county and state districts 
that will attract and retain the highest quality educators for our students 

• Add language pertaining to the crediting of years of prior experience for salary 
schedule placement for new and returning hires   
 

Article 13. Waiver 
• Update initial proposal language. 

 
Article 16. Duration of this Agreement 

• Propose a new three (3) year duration for the contract. 
• Eliminate outdated and irrelevant language and dates. 

 
The SPTA also proposes to review contract articles and memorandums of understandings that 
may have become obsolete, need updating, be eliminated, or incorporated into the collective 
bargaining agreement before printing off and signing off on a fully updated collectively bargained 
agreement. 
 



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 11/01/2018 through 11/30/2018

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

00015073 11/06/2018 ACSA'S FOUNDATION FOR EDUCATIONAL 

ADMINISTRATION

76-9575 WHITE 75.50 

00015074 11/06/2018 ACSA'S FOUNDATION FOR EDUCATIONAL 

ADMINISTRATION

76-9575 BETHKE 60.83 

00015075 11/13/2018 CIT 01-5900 PHONE SYSTEM/MAINTENANCE 735.84 

00015076 11/13/2018 CUSTOMINK ATTN: ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 01-4300 T-SHIRTS 1,477.17 

Unpaid Sales Tax 99.87- 1,377.30 

00015077 11/13/2018 HARBOR FREIGHT TOOLS 01-4300 SHOP SUPPLIES 167.72 

00015078 11/13/2018 JANIS HARDEMAN 01-5810 NURSE SERVICES 3,600.00 

00015079 11/13/2018 KERI HUDDLESTON 01-5810 INDEPENDENT EDUCATIONAL EVAL 880.00 

00015080 11/13/2018 JANE V. LEE, M.A., LMFT 01-5810 COUNSELING SERVICES 1,920.00 

00015081 11/13/2018 LIBERTY UTILITIES CPEC 01-5500 ELECTRICAL SERVICE 128.49 

00015082 11/13/2018 MARY LOWE 01-5810 COUNSELING SERVICES 5,500.00 

00015083 11/13/2018 BARBARA MCKURTIS 01-5810 CONTRACTED CONSULTANT 

AGREEMENT

8,460.00 

00015084 11/13/2018 SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 01-5808 BANK SERVICE FEES 30.00 

00015085 11/13/2018 SIERRA VALLEY HOME CENTER 01-4300 SHOP SUPPLIES 148.81 

00015086 11/13/2018 STAPLES ADVANTAGE 01-4400 PRINTER 608.22 

00015087 11/13/2018 VOYAGER 01-4350 FUEL EXPENSE 47.76 

01-5200 FUEL EXPENSE 71.89 

01-5899 FUEL EXPENSE 67.00 186.65 

Total Number of Checks 15 23,879.36 

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

County School Service Fund 13 23,842.90 01

Payroll Clearing 2 136.33 76

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 15 23,979.23 

99.87 

23,879.36 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 1 of 1

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Nov 29 2018  9:28AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education











  Prepared & Presented by: Nona Griesert, Business Manager 

 

Sierra County Office of Education 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

First Interim Budget 
2018/19 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

December 11, 2018 
Merrill M. Grant, Ed.D./Superintendent 

 



    

SCOE 2018-2019 1st Interim Budget Narrative 
Page 2 of 5 

Sierra County Office of Education 
2018-2019 First Interim  

Actuals as of October 31, 2018 
Presented December 11, 2018 

 
 
The First Interim budget report is a snapshot in time of the revenue and expenditure forecasts for the current fiscal year as well 

as a projection of the two subsequent fiscal years. It is a time to adjust the budget based upon the 
enacted State Budget and subsequent trailer bills, the closing of the prior fiscal year, and other factors 
that impact revenue and expenditures. The First Interim report covers the period of time from July 1 
through October 31 each fiscal year. Keep in mind that a budget and multi-year projection are just that 
- projections, not forecasts.  Projections are expected to change as various factors change, they are not 
predictions.  Projections are the mathematical result of today’s decisions based on a given set of 
assumptions.  Forecasts, on the other hand, are predictions of the future; there is a higher implied 

reliability factor than for projections.  Projections will change anytime the underlying factors change. 
 
 

The Big Picture 
 
On the National level the 3rd quarter of 2018 reveals a 3.5 GDP – almost double of what it was in Q3 of 2016. Gross Domestic 
purchases are almost 3 times that of Q3 in 2016. The U.S. economic outlook is healthy according to the key economic 
indicators. The most critical indicator is the Gross Domestic Product which measures the nations production output. There 
isn’t too much inflation or deflation. A Goldilocks economy, so to speak. The factors that cause changes in the business cycle 
are supply, demand, capital availability and the market’s perception of the economic future. The Bureau of Labor & Statistics 
assumes the economy will fully recover from the recession by 2020. They also anticipate a 
substantial increase in jobs, 2.1 million in professional and technical occupations. 
 
If California were a country with its $2.9 Trillion economy it would be the fifth biggest in the 
world, ranked between Germany and the United Kingdom. The state represents 14% of the 
U.S. economy. California’s economy is slowing however. The UCLA forecast in 3rd quarter 
2018 report questions whether the growth rate is sustainable. Although the economy is 
operating at full employment and benefiting from the massive tax cut and spending increases, 
the economic stimulus coming from that combination will likely run out in 2020, and deficits 
it creates will linger for another decade. 
 
California has a new Governor that will take his seat in January 2019. It is likely that Governor Newsom will be making 
changes when he takes office but what those changes will be and how that affects California remains to be seen.  
 
The Governor-elect has a lot of expensive ideas and has not said how he will pay for those ideas. What will be the changes to 
education funding be? Only time will tell but we may have a glimpse at the Governor’s budget release mid-January 2019.  

 
 

 
  



    

SCOE 2018-2019 1st Interim Budget Narrative 
Page 3 of 5 

 
GENERAL FUND 
 
REVENUE 
Below are the changes in revenue projections since the budget adoption. 
 
Local Control Funding Formula 
LCFF State Revenue increased by $8,646 since budget adoption. 
 
Federal Revenue 
No change to Federal Revenue since the budget adoption.  
 
 
Other State Revenue 
Restricted Other State Revenue decreased by ($83,894) since the budget adoption for the following reason: 
 
       Favorable         

Funding Description            (Unfavorable) 
 One Time Mandated Cost decrease ($  2,743) 
 State Lottery - Unrestricted   $     497 
 State Lottery - Restricted   $     220 
 Foster Youth    ($81,868) 

Net Change          ($83,894) 
 

Local Revenue 
Local Revenue did not have a change since the budget adoption.  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LCFF Sources; 
$852,216; 43%

Federal ; $162,418; 
8%

Other State; 
$594,847; 30%

Other Local; 
$307,293; 16%

Fund 16 ‐ Transfer In; $53,846; 
3%

Total Resources $1,970,620



    

SCOE 2018-2019 1st Interim Budget Narrative 
Page 4 of 5 

Description 2015-16 
Actuals 

2016-17 
Actuals 

2017-18 
Unaudited 

Actuals 

2018-2019  
Adopted 
Budget 

2018-2019 
First 

Interim 
LCFF Resources $   815,911 $   775,048 $   854,206 843,570 $852,216 
Federal         503,545            274,540           194,130 162,418 162,418 
Other State 701,811 688,441 660,753 678,741 594,847 

Other Local 191,865 340,611 370,430 307,293 307,293 
Total $2,213,132 $2,078,640 $2,079,519 $1,992,022 $1,916,774 
 
EXPENDITURES 
 
General Fund Expenditures 
Expenditures increased by $88,302 (General Fund, Unrestricted/Restricted, Page 1) from the Board 
Approved Adopted Budget. 
 
 

 
 
Expenditures Comparison  

Description 

2015-16 Actuals 2016-17 Actuals 

2017-18 
Unaudited 

Actuals 

2018-2019  
Adopted 
Budget 

2018-2019 
First Interim 

Certificated $  377,396 $  504,973 $  560,268 $  559,561 $  600,780 
Classified 343,330 374,437 398,276 414,447 412,731 
Benefits 330,652 418,617 494,494 496,901 506,081 
Books & Supplies 29,151 46,569 25,289 104,053 88,764 
Services & 
Operating 402,700 503,111 506,018 615,871 

 
577,531 

Capital Outlay 6,264 81,843 10,916 317,664 335,664 
Other Outgo 389,640 129,294 34,249 24,428 24,428 
Total $1,879,133 $2,058,844 $2,029,510 $2,532,925 2,545,979 

 
 
 

Certificated; 
$600,780; 24%

Classified; 
$412,731; 16%

Benefits; $506,081; 
20%

Books & Supplies; 
$88,764; 3%

Services & 
Operating; 

$577,531; 23%

Capital Outlay; 
$335,664; 13%

Outgo to District; 
$24,428; 1%

Total Expenses  $2,545,979



    

SCOE 2018-2019 1st Interim Budget Narrative 
Page 5 of 5 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Projected Ending Fund Balance 
2014-15 $2,305,842 actuals 
2015-16 $2,694,339 actuals 
2016-17 $2,698,358 actuals 
2017-18 $2,846,059 unaudited  
2018-19 $2,270,700 projected 

 
Personnel  FTE 
Certificated  4.60 
Superintendent    .15 
Administrative  2.40  19.13 FTE 
Classified  8.98 
Confidential  3.00 
 
Direct Services Contracted to provide special education services  
Speech 
Occupational Therapy 
Adapted P.E. 
Public Nurse 

 

Comments 
 
1. COLA of 3.70% on state and local share only of Special Education, Child Nutrition, Foster Youth, 

Preschool, American Indian Education Centers/American Indian Early childhood Education. 

2. No salary increases in addition to step and column for employees projected in the current or 

subsequent 2 years. 

3. Certificated health and welfare (H/W) soft cap selected plan employee range (14,398.50 to 

19,534.50);   Certificated employees hired effective 2017/18 hard capped at $17,536; all other 

employees H/W is capped at $17,536. H/W cost is $230,385. 

4. PERS rate increase from 15.531% to 18.062%, for a projected annual cost of $74,322. 

5. STRS rate increase from 14.43% to 16.28%.for a projected annual cost of $84,788. 

6. Reimburse Sierra‐Plumas JUSD to provide foster youth, business, curriculum, and technology 

services. 

7. Forest Reserve Revenue budget is $53,846. 

8. Positive Certification 

9. Projected ending cash balance: $2,270,700 

Fiscal Year Amount 
2014-15 actuals 243,930 
2015-16 actuals 388,497 
2016-17 actuals 36,578 
2017-18 unaudited 115,142 
2018-19 projected (575,359) 



Reviewed By:

$:
%:

Year: 18/19 18/19 Pos (Neg) % 18/19 18/19 Pos (Neg) % 18/19 18/19 Pos (Neg) %

Period:
Adopted 
Budget First Interim Difference Change

Adopted 
Budget First Interim Difference Change

Adopted 
Budget First Interim Difference Change

Revenues
LCFF Revenue 8010-8099 843,570        852,216        8,646           1.02% -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0! 843,570        852,216        8,646           1.02%
Federal Revenues 8100-8299 -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0! 162,418        162,418        -                   0.00% 162,418        162,418        -                   0.00%
State Revenues 8300-8599 8,546            6,300            (2,246)         -26.28% 1 670,195        588,547        (81,648)        -12.18% 4 678,741        594,847        (83,894)        -12.36%
Local Revenues 8600-8799 302,793        302,793        -                   0.00% 4,500            4,500            -                   0.00% 307,293        307,293        -                   0.00%

Total Revenues 1,154,909     1,161,309     6,400            0.55% 837,113        755,465        (81,648)        -9.75% 1,992,022     1,916,774     (75,248)        -3.78%

Expenditures
Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 233,925        262,486        28,561         12.21% 2 325,636        338,294        12,658         3.89% 559,561        600,780        41,219          7.37%
Classified Salaries 2000-2999 256,572        264,026        7,454           2.91% 157,875        148,705        (9,170)          -5.81% 414,447        412,731        (1,716)          -0.41%
Benefits & Taxes 3000-3999 281,649        306,676        25,027         8.89% 215,252        199,405        (15,847)        -7.36% 496,901        506,081        9,180           1.85%
Materials & Supplies 4000-4999 19,557          29,880          10,323         52.78% 3 84,496          58,884          (25,612)        -30.31% 5 104,053        88,764          (15,289)        -14.69%
Operating Expenditures5000-5999 370,222        374,317        4,095           1.11% 245,649        203,214        (42,435)        -17.27% 6 615,871        577,531        (38,340)        -6.23%
Capital Outlay 6000-6599 310,000        313,000        3,000           0.97% 7,664            22,664          15,000         195.72% 7 317,664        335,664        18,000         5.67%
Other Outgo 7xxx's 24,428          24,428          -                   0.00% -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0! 24,428          24,428          -                   0.00%
Other Outgo 7300-7399 (6,568)          (6,082)          486              -7.40% 6,568            6,082            (486)            -7.40% -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0!

Total Expenditures 1,489,785     1,568,731     78,946          5.30% 1,043,140     977,248        (65,892)        -6.32% 2,532,925     2,545,979     13,054          0.52%

Rev less Exp (334,876)       (407,422)       (72,546)        21.66% (206,027)       (221,783)       (15,756)        7.65% (540,903)       (629,205)       (88,302)        16.32%

Other Sources/Uses
Transfers In 8910-8979 52,121          53,846          1,725           3.31% -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0! 52,121          53,846          1,725           3.31%
Contributions 8980-8999 (173,468)       (189,873)       (16,405)        9.46% 173,468        189,873        16,405         9.46% -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0!
Transfers Out 7610-7699 -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0! -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0! -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0!

Total Other Sources (121,347)       (136,027)       (14,680)        12.10% 173,468        189,873        16,405          9.46% 52,121          53,846          1,725            3.31%

Change in Fund Bal (456,223)      (543,449)      (87,226)        19.12% (32,559)        (31,910)        649              -1.99% (488,782)      (575,359)      (86,577)        17.71%

Beg Fund Bal 2,698,358     2,814,069     115,711        4.29% 32,559          31,990          (569)             -1.75% 2,730,917     2,846,059     115,142        4.22%
Adjustments -                   #DIV/0! -                   #DIV/0! -                   #DIV/0!
Adj Beg Fund Bal 2,698,358     2,814,069     115,711        4.29% 32,559          31,990          (569)             -1.75% 2,730,917     2,846,059     115,142        4.22%

End Fund Bal 2,242,135     2,270,620     28,485          1.27% -                   80                80                #DIV/0! 2,242,135     2,270,700    28,565          1.27%
Non Spendable 500              500              500              500              
Restricted  -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0! -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0! -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0!
Comitted 186,013        186,013        -                   0.00% -                   #DIV/0! 186,013        186,013        -                   0.00%
Assigned -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0! -                   #DIV/0! -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0!
REU 248,000        255,000        7,000           -                   248,000        255,000        7,000           

Unassigned 1,807,622    1,829,107     28,485         1.58% -                  80                80                #DIV/0! 1,807,622    1,829,187     28,565         1.58%

REU is: 9.8% 10.0%
Tickmark Legend

Unrestricted Restricted Total

2018/19 1st Interim Budget 
Sierra County Office of Education

Gen Fund Budget Comparison Worksheet
Materiality Threshold



1 Unrestricted revenues reduced due to Mandated Block Grant One Time funding reduction of approx <$2,700> and slight increase in unrestricted Lottery funding of approx $500.

2 Unrestricted certificated staff increase approx $28K due to coding changes, small increase to unrestricted certificated extra duty $250.
3 Unrestricted Materials & Supplies increased due to prior year Unrestricted Lottery carryover.
4 Restricted State Revenues reduced approximately <$82k> due to Foster Youth funding not awarded.
5 Restricted Mat's & Supplies for SpEd Mental Health reduced approx <$25k> due to a reduction in anticipated C/O, Rest. Lottery increased approx $1,400, SpEd increase approx $500 & Foster Youth reduced approx
6 Restricted Operating expenditures for Foster Youth reduced approx <$54k>,  Regular SpEd increased approx $18,300, Title I reduced approx <$6,700>.
7 Restricted Capital Outlay increased due to Prop 39 carryover funds.
8

9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18

19
20

Sierra County Office of Education
2018/19 1st Interim Budget 



Sierra County Office of Education
2018/19 1st Interim Budget 

$: 0
%: 0%

Unrestricted Restricted Combined Unrestricted Restricted Combined Unrestricted Restricted Combined

A B C D E F G H I
Revenues

LCFF Revenues 8010-8099 852,216        -               852,216          876,550        -             876,550        899,777        -               899,777        
Federal Revenues 8100-8299 -                162,418        162,418          -               162,418      162,418        -               162,418        162,418        
State Revenues 8300-8599 6,300            588,547        594,847          5,229           588,547      593,776        5,229            588,547        593,776        
Local Revenues 8600-8799 302,793        4,500            307,293          302,793        4,500          307,293        302,793        4,500            307,293        
Transfers In 8910-8979 53,846          -               53,846            13,360          -             13,360          13,360          -               13,360          
Contributions 8980-8999 (189,873)       189,873        -                 (229,476)      229,476      -               (239,645)       239,645        -                

Total Revenues 1,025,282      945,338        1,970,620       968,456        984,941      1,953,397     981,514        995,110        1,976,624      
Expenditures

Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 262,486        338,294        600,780          266,852        344,248      611,100        271,546        350,376        621,922        
Classified Salaries 2000-2999 264,026        148,705        412,731          270,128        151,545      421,673        275,303        154,263        429,566        
Benefits & Taxes 3000-3999 306,676        199,405        506,081          308,527        217,926      526,453        311,316        219,249        530,565        
Materials & Supplies 4000-4999 29,880          58,922          88,802            29,880          58,884        88,764          29,880          58,884          88,764          
Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 374,317        203,256        577,573          374,317        203,256      577,573        374,317        203,256        577,573        
Capital Outlay 6000-6599 313,000        22,664          335,664          20,000          3,000          23,000          20,000          3,000            23,000          
Other Outgo 7xxx's 24,428          -               24,428            24,428          -             24,428          24,428          -               24,428          
Other Outgo 7300-7399 (6,082)           6,082            -                 (6,082)          6,082          -               (6,082)           6,082            -                
Transfers Out 7600-7629 -                -               -                 -               -             -               -               -               -                

Total Expenditures 1,568,731      977,328        2,546,059       1,288,050     984,941      2,272,991     1,300,708     995,110        2,295,818      

Rev less Exp (543,449)       (31,990)         (575,439)         (319,594)      -             (319,594)       (319,194)       -               (319,194)       

Change in Fund Bal (543,449)      (31,990)        (575,439)        (319,594)      -             (319,594)      (319,194)      -              (319,194)       

Beg Fund Bal 2,814,069      31,990          2,846,059       2,270,620     -             2,270,620     1,951,026     -               1,951,026      
Adjustments -                -               -                 -             -               -               -                
Adj Beg Fund Bal 2,814,069      31,990          2,846,059       2,270,620     -             2,270,620     1,951,026     -               1,951,026      

End Fund Bal 2,270,620     -               2,270,620      1,951,026     -             1,951,026     1,631,832     -              1,631,832     
Non Spendable 500               -               500                 500              -             500              500              -               500               
Restricted  -                -               -                 -             -               -               -                
Comitted 186,013        -               186,013          215,360        -             215,360        215,360        -               215,360        
Assigned -                -               -                 -             -               -               -                
REU 248,000        -               248,000          245,000        -             245,000        245,000        -               245,000        

Unassigned 1,836,107     -               1,836,107       1,490,166     -             1,490,166     1,170,972     -              1,170,972     

Budget MYP MYP

Multi Year Projection
Materiality Threshold

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21



































































































































































































SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION          
Classified Salary Schedule 

         

POSITION A B C D E F G H I J K
YR 5 YR 8 YR 11 YR 14 YR 17 YR 20 YR 25

INSTRUCTIONAL AIDE 12.16 12.87 13.59 14.34 15.08 15.82 16.62 17.47 18.34 19.26 20.22

CUSTODIAN 14.16 15.01 15.84 16.70 17.53 18.39 19.34 20.31 21.31 22.38 23.51

WORKABILITY COORDINATOR 16.20 17.02 17.87 18.75 19.70 20.67 21.71 22.79 23.94 25.13 26.38

CAREER TECH 13.69 14.37 15.09 15.83 16.63 17.47 18.34 19.25 20.21 21.22 22.29

*BEHAVIOR ATTENDANT 12.00 12.00 12.19 12.69 13.19 13.72 14.27 14.84 15.43 16.05 16.85

WORKABILITY AIDE 12.76 13.41 14.08 14.78 15.52 16.29 17.11 17.96 18.87 19.80 20.79

CLERK TYPIST 12.74 13.51 14.28 15.04 15.76 16.56 17.41 18.28 19.19 20.15 21.16

INSTRUCTIONAL AIDE (SH) 13.16 13.95 14.79 15.67 16.46 17.28 18.14 19.05 20.00 21.00 22.05

*TRANSPORTATION AIDE 12.00 12.00 12.13 12.73 13.37 14.04 14.74 15.48 16.25 17.06 17.92

Approved May 9, 2017, SH Aide Added September 21, 2017
Added Transportation Aide February 13, 2018
*Proposed December 11, 2018 - Minimum Wage Increase Effective 1/1/2019



CSBA POLICY GUIDE SHEET 
December 11, 2018 

 
BP 6142.3 - Civic Education 
(BP revised) 

Policy updated to add new section on "Student Voter Registration" containing material formerly in BP 1400 
- Relations Between Governmental Agencies and the Schools. Policy also reflects NEW LAW (AB 24, 2017) 
which establishes the State Seal of Civic Engagement to recognize high school graduates who have 
demonstrated excellence in civic education and participation based on criteria to be approved by the State 
Board of Education by January 31, 2021. Examples of activities that link civic knowledge to practical 
experience expanded to reflect additional concepts in the state curriculum framework. 

 
BP/AR 6152.1 - Placement in Mathematics Courses 
(BP revised; AR added) 

Policy updated to clarify which policy components are mandated and to expand program evaluation to include 
a report on the percentage of students who have successfully completed mathematics courses that satisfy the 
requirements for entrance to the University of California and California State University. New regulation 
includes material formerly in BP, including the appeals process, the requirement to post the policy on the 
district's web site, and circumstances under which staff recommendations may be considered in course 
placement. Regulation also includes examples of objective academic measures that may be used to place 
students in mathematics courses. 

 
BP 6170.1 - Transitional Kindergarten 
(BP revised) 

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1808) which allows districts to place 4-year-old children enrolled 
in a CSPP program into a TK program and to commingle children from both programs into the same 
classroom under specified conditions. 
 

BP/AR 6178 - Career Technical Education 
(BP/AR revised) 

Policy updated to reflect NEW FEDERAL LAW (P.L. 115-224) which reauthorizes the Carl D. Perkins 
Career and Technical Education Act, retitled as the Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 
21st Century Act, and NEW LAW (AB 1808) which amends the California Career Technical Education 
Incentive Grant Program. Material regarding activities for special populations and consultation with private 
school representatives moved to AR. Material on program evaluation revised to add requirement to review 
measures of career technical education pathway completion as part of the annual review of progress toward 
the goals in the local control and accountability plan (LCAP). Regulation revises section on "Federal Grants 
for Career Technical Education (Perkins)" to reflect P.L. 115-224, including streamlining the uses of grant 
funds, adding a requirement for a needs assessment, and changing the definition of "special needs 
populations." Regulation also deletes section on "Tech Prep Programs" as those programs are no longer 
funded and are repealed by P.L. 115-224. Section on "Linked Learning Programs" deletes Note regarding 
linked learning pilot program which repealed on its own terms. 

 
BP 6190 - Evaluation of the Instructional Program 
(BP revised) 

Policy updated to delete references to the obsolete API and add the California School Dashboard as a source 
for multiple state and local indicators of strengths and areas in need of improvement in each priority area 
addressed by the LCAP.  Section on "Federal Program Monitoring" deleted as the focus of the policy is on 
program effectiveness rather than compliance with program requirements. 



1 
 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
Instruction  
BP 6142.3 
 
CIVIC EDUCATION 
 

Note:  The following optional policy may be revised to reflect district practice. 
 
Education Code 51470-51474, as added by AB 24 (Ch. 604, Statutes of 2017), establish the State Seal of Civic 
Engagement, a voluntary program to recognize high school graduates who have demonstrated excellence in civic 
education and participation, as well as an understanding of the U.S. Constitution, the California Constitution, and the 
democratic system of government. The Superintendent of Public Instruction will provide an insignia that can be affixed 
to the diploma or transcript of eligible students. Criteria for the award will be approved by the State Board of Education 
by January 31, 2021. 

 
The Governing Board recognizes that citizen involvement in civic and political institutions is essential 
to a democratic government and desires to provide a comprehensive civic education program to help 
students acquire the knowledge, skills, and principles essential for informed, engaged, and responsible 
citizenship. 
 

Note:  State standards and guidelines for instruction in civics and government are included in the standards and 
curriculum framework for history-social science. The history-social science framework contains suggestions for 
lessons and activities that include simulations of government, student-led debates, research projects, voter education, 
and service learning. In addition, the Center for Civic Education has developed voluntary National Standards for 
Civics and Government describing what students should know and be able to do in the field of civics and government 
in grades K-4, 5-8, and 9-12. 

 
The Board shall approve, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent or designee, academic 
standards and curriculum in civics and government that are aligned with state academic standards and 
curriculum frameworks. 
(cf. 6000 - Concepts and Roles) 
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 
(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation) 
(cf. 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction) 
(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall determine specific courses within the K-12 curriculum in which 
civic education and government may be explicitly and systematically taught.  He/she also shall also 
encourage the integration of civic education into other subjects as appropriate. 
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 
 
The district's civic education program shall provide students with an understanding of the rights and 
responsibilities of citizens in American democracy and the workings of federal, state, and local 
governments. As appropriate, instruction should include an examination of fundamental American 
documents, including, but not limited to, the Declaration of Independence, the United States 
Constitution, the Federalist Papers, and other significant writings and speeches. Instruction should 
also promote a student's understanding of shared democratic principles and values, such as personal 
responsibility, justice, equality, respect for others, civic-mindedness, and patriotism, and enable 
students to make their own commitment to these civic values. 



2 
 
 
To develop a sense of political effectiveness, instruction should develop students' understanding of 
the importance of civic participation in a democratic society. Service learning, extracurricular and 
cocurricular activities, class and school elections, simulations of government, student-led debates, 
voter education, and observation of local government processes may be used to reinforce classroom 
instruction by linking civic knowledge to practical experience and encouraging civic involvement. 
(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools) 
(cf. 6142.4 - Service Learning Through /Community Service Classes) 
(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 
 
Instruction also should promote a student's understanding of shared democratic principles and values, 
such as personal responsibility, justice, equality, respect for others, civic-mindedness, and patriotism, 
and enable students to make their own commitment to these civic values. 
(cf. 9150 - Student Board Members) 
 
Whenever civic education includes topics that may be controversial due to political beliefs or other 
influences, instruction shall be presented in a balanced manner that does not promote any particular 
viewpoint. Students shall not be discriminated against for expressing their ideas and opinions and 
shall be encouraged to respect different points of view. 
(cf. 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/Expression) 
(cf. 6144 - Controversial Issues) 
 
Constitution/Citizenship Day 
 
Each year on or near September 17, in commemoration of Constitution and Citizenship Day, the 
district shall hold an educational program for students in grades K-12 pertaining to the United States 
Constitution which shall include exercises and instruction in the purpose, meaning, and importance 
of the Constitution, including the Bill of Rights.  (Education Code 37221; P.L. 108-447, Sec. 11136 
USC 106 Note) 
(cf. 6115 - Ceremonies and Observances) 
 
Student Voter Registration 
 

Note:  The following section is for use by districts that maintain high schools. Elections Code 2146 requires the 
California Secretary of State to annually provide high schools with voter registration forms in numbers specifically 
requested by the school. 

 
To encourage students to participate in the elections process when they are of voting age, the 
Superintendent or designee shall provide high school students with voter registration information, 
including information regarding the state's online voter registration system. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall identify an employee at each high school whom the California 
Secretary of State may contact to facilitate the distribution of voter registration forms to eligible 
students. The Superintendent or designee shall provide the business address, phone number, and email 
address of each contact person to the Secretary of State.  (Elections Code 2148) 
 

Note:  The following optional paragraph reflects examples of methods of distributing voter registration forms as 
specified in Elections Code 2146 and may be revised to reflect district practice. 

 
The designated employee shall determine the most effective means of distributing voter registration 
forms provided by the Secretary of State, which may include, but are not limited to, distributing the 
forms at the start of the school year with orientation materials, placing voter registration forms at 



3 
 
central locations, including voter registration forms with graduation materials, and/or providing links 
and the web site address of the Secretary of State's online voter registration system on the district's 
web site and in email notices sent to students. 
 
The principal or designee may appoint one or more students enrolled at each high school to serve as 
voter outreach coordinators at that school. The voter outreach coordinator(s) may coordinate voter 
registration activities at the school to encourage eligible persons to register to vote. With the approval 
of the principal or designee, the voter outreach coordinator(s) may also coordinate election-related 
activities on campus, including voter registration drives, mock elections, debates, and other election-
related student outreach activities.  (Education Code 49041) 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 5145.13 - Response to Immigration Enforcement) 
 

Note:  Education Code 49040 designates the last two full weeks in April and the last two full weeks in September as 
"high school voter education weeks" during which elections officials may, at their discretion, visit high school 
campuses to register students and school personnel to vote. This does not preclude registration events on a high school 
campus as otherwise permitted by the Elections Code. 

 
During the last two full weeks in April and September, in areas on each high school campus that are 
reasonably accessible to all students as designated by the principal or designee, the county elections 
official shall be allowed to register students and school personnel to vote.  (Education Code 49040) 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
54  Student service on boards and commissions 
233.5 Teaching of principles 
33540  Standards for government and civics instruction 
37221 Commemorative exercises including anniversary of U.S. Constitution 
48205  Absence from school for jury duty or precinct board service 
49040-49041  Student voter registration 
51210  Courses of study, grades 1-6 
51220  Courses of study, grades 7-12 
51470-51474  State Seal of Civic Engagement 
ELECTIONS CODE 
2146  Student voter registration 
2148  Student voter registration, contact person 
12302  Precinct boards, appointment of students 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
6711-6716  Education for Democracy Act 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 36 
101-144  Patriotic observances 

Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
School Board Leadership: The Role and Function of California's School Boards, 1996 
FEDERAL REGISTER 
77 Fed. Reg. 29727  Constitution Day and Citizenship Day 

AMERICAN BAR ASSOCIATION PUBLICATIONS 
Essentials of Law-Related Education, rev. 2003 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
History-Social Science Content Standards 
History-Social Science Framework for California Public Schools 
CENTER FOR CIVIC EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Education for Democracy: California Civic Education Scope & Sequence, 2003 
National Standards for Civics and Government, 1994 



4 
 

NATIONAL ASSESSMENT OF EDUCATIONAL PROGRESS (NAEP) PUBLICATIONS 
1998 Civics Report Card for the Nation, November 18, 1999 

Civics Assessment 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
American Bar Association, Law-Related Education Projects: 
http://www.abanetamericanbar.org/publiced/lregroups/public_education.html 
American Political Science Association: http://www.apsanet.org 
Bill of Rights Institute: http://www.billofrightsinstitute.org 
California Association of Student Leaders:  http://www.casl1.org 
California Council for the Social Studies: http://www.ccss.org 
California Secretary of State Online Voter Registration: http://registertovote.ca.gov 
Center for California Studies: http://www.csus.edu/calst 
Center for Civic Education: http://www.civiced.org 
Center for Information and Research on Civic Learning and Engagement: http://www.civicyouth.org 

Center for Youth Citizenship: http://www.youthcitizenship.org 
Constitutional Rights Foundation: http://www.crf-usa.org 
National Assessment of Educational Progress (NAEP),, Civics Assessment: 
http://nces.ed.gov/nationsreportcard/civics 
National Council for the Social Studies: http://www.ncss.org 

 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007 
revised: December 11, 2018 



1 
 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
Instruction  
BP 6152.1 
 
PLACEMENT IN MATHEMATICS COURSES 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 51224.7, the Governing Board of a district which serves 9th-grade students is 
mandated to develop and, at a regularly scheduled public Board meeting, adopt a fair, objective, and transparent 
mathematics placement policy with specified components. Although not required, districts serving students who are 
transitioning between elementary and middle or junior high schools are encouraged to adopt and implement policy to 
address the transition from elementary to secondary mathematics courses. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code 51225.3, high school graduation requirements include the completion of at least two 
mathematics courses in grades 9-12.  Pursuant to Education Code 51224.5, one of those two courses must meet or 
exceed state content standards for Algebra I or Mathematics I.  While the completion of Algebra I or Mathematics I 
coursework prior to 9th grade would satisfy this requirement, it does not exempt a student from the requirement to 
complete two mathematics courses in grades 9-12.  See BP 6142.92 - Mathematics Instruction and BP 6146.1 - High 
School Graduation Requirements. 
 
According to a report by the Lawyers' Committee for Civil Rights of San Francisco Bay Area, Held Back:  Addressing 
Misplacement of 9th Grade Students in Bay Area School Math Classes, many districts place students who have 
successfully completed Algebra I in 8th grade into Algebra I class again in 9th grade. In adding Education Code 
51224.7, the legislature declared that placement in appropriate mathematics courses is critically important for a student 
in his/her middle and high school years, and that misplacement in the sequence of mathematics courses creates barriers 
for educational success, especially for students of color. 

 
The Governing Board believes that a sound educational program must include the study of subjects 
that prepare students for admission to higher education and/or a fulfilling career. To the extent 
possible, districtcareers.  District students shall be provided an opportunity to complete a sequence of 
mathematics courses recommended for admission into the University of California and California 
State University systems. 
(cf. 6141.5 - Advanced Placement) 
(cf. 6142.92 - Mathematics Instruction) 
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 
 

Note:  The following paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. For nonunified districts, Education Code 
51224.7 mandates that the policy address the consistency of mathematics placement policies between elementary and 
high school districts. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall work with district teachers, counselors, and administrators and 
the representatives of feeder schools to develop a well-articulated sequence of mathematics courses 
and consistent protocols for placing students in mathematics courses offered at district high schools.  
 

Note:  Education Code 51224.7 mandates that the district's policy include the following statement. Also see the 
accompanying administrative regulation for further information regarding placement protocols. 

 
Such placement protocols shall systematically take into consideration multiple objective academic 
measures that may include, but are not limited to, statewide mathematics assessments, including state 
interim and summative assessments,; placement tests that are aligned to state-adopted content 



2 
 
standards in mathematics,; classroom assignment and grades,; and report cards.  (Education Code 
51224.7) 
(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 
(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 
(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 
 

Note:  The Lawyers' Committee for Civil Rights of San Francisco Bay Area's report, Held Back:  Addressing 
Misplacement of 9th Grade Students in Bay Area School Math Classes, found that the practice of having 9th-grade 
students repeat Algebra I disproportionately affects students of color and from low-income families, and could 
therefore be found to be discriminatory. For more information about the prohibition against discrimination in district 
programs and activities, see BP 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities. 

 
District staff shall implement the placement protocols uniformly and without regard to students' 
socioeconomic background or any characteristic specified in BP 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District 
Programs and Activities, including, but not limited to, race, sex, gender, nationality, and ethnicity. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. Students shall be enrolled in mathematics courses based on the placement protocols. No student 
shall repeat a mathematics course which he/she has successfully completed based on the district's 
placement protocols. 
When a student does not qualify to be enrolled in a higher level mathematics course based on a 
consideration of the objective measures specified in the placement protocols, he/she may nevertheless 
be admitted to the course based on the recommendation of a teacher or counselor who has personal 
knowledge of the student's academic ability. 
The placement protocols shall specify a time0415 - Equity) 
(cf. 6174 - Education for English Learners) 
 

Note:  Education Code 51224.7 mandates that the district's policy include at least one placement checkpoint within 
the first month of the school year when studentsto ensure accurate placement and permit reevaluation of individual 
student progress. 

 
The placement protocols shall be reevaluatedprovide for at least one reevaluation within the first 
month of the school year to ensure that theystudents are appropriately placed in mathematics courses 
and shall specify the criteria the district will use to make this determination. Any student found to be 
misplaced shall be promptly placed in the appropriate mathematics course. 
 

Within 10 school days of an initial placement decision or a placement decision upon reevaluation, 
a student Note:  Education Code 51224.7 mandates that the district's policy offer a clear and timely recourse for 
any student and his/her parent/guardian who disagree with the placement ofquestion the studentstudent's 
placement. See the accompanying administrative regulation for additional language implementing this requirement. 

 
If a student or parent/guardian questions the student's placement, he/she may appeal the decision to 
the Superintendent or designee. The Superintendent or designee shall decide whether or not to 
overrule the placement determination within 10 school days of receiving the appeal. The decision of 
the Superintendent or designee shall be final. 
(cf. 5123 - Promotion/Acceleration/Retention) 
 
District staff shall implement the placement protocols uniformly and without regard to students' race, 
sex, gender, nationality, ethnicity, socioeconomic background, or other subjective or discriminatory 
consideration in making placement decisions. 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 



3 
 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all teachers, counselors, and other district staff 
responsible for determining students' placement in mathematics courses receive training on the 
placement protocols. 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
 
Prior to the beginning of each school year, the Superintendent or designee shall communicate the 
district's commitment to providing students with the opportunity to complete mathematics courses 
recommended for college admission, including approved placement protocols and the appeal process, 
to parents/guardians, students, teachers, school counselors, and administrators. 
 
This policy and the district's mathematics placement protocols shall be posted on the district's web 
site. (Education Code 51224.7) 
 

Note:  To ensure that students who are qualified to progress in mathematics courses based on their performance on 
district-selected objective academic measures are not unlawfully or inappropriately held back, Education Code 
51224.7 mandates that the policy include a requirement for an annual examination of aggregate student placement 
data which must be reported to the Board. In addition, pursuant to Education Code 52060, districts must annually 
review their progress toward the student achievement goals in their local control and accountability plan using 
measures that include, as applicable, the percentage of students who have successfully completed courses that satisfy 
the requirements for entrance to the University of California and the California State University. 

 
The Board(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 
Annually, the Board and the Superintendent or designee shall annually review student data related to 
placement and advancement in thein mathematics courses offered at district high schools to ensure 
that students who are qualified to progress in mathematics courses based on their performance on 
objective academic measures are not being held back in a disproportionate manner on the basis of 
their race, ethnicity, gender,any subjective or socioeconomic background. The Boarddiscriminatory 
basis, and Superintendent shall also consider appropriate recommendationsshall develop strategies 
for removing any identified barriers to students' access to mathematics courses.  The Superintendent 
or designee shall also report on the percentage of district students who have successfully completed 
mathematics courses that satisfy the requirements for entrance to the University of California and the 
California State University. 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 
48070.5  Promotion and retention; required policy 
51220  Areas of study, grades 7-12 
51224.5  Completion of Algebra I or Mathematics I 
51224.7  California Mathematics Placement Act of 2015 
51225.3  High school graduation requirements 
51284  Financial literacy 
52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 
60605  State-adopted content and performance standards in core curricular areas 
60605.8  Common Core standards 
60640-60649  California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Math Misplacement, Governance Brief, September 2015 



4 
 
Governing to the Core, Governance Briefs 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Mathematics Framework for California Public Schools: Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve, 2013 
California Common Core State Standards: Mathematics, January 2013 
COMMON CORE STATE STANDARDS INITIATIVE PUBLICATIONS 
Appendix A: Designing High School Mathematics Courses Based on the Common Core State Standards 
LAWYERS' COMMITTEE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS OF THE SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA (LCCR) 
Held Back - Addressing Misplacement of 9th Grade Students in Bay Area School Math Classes, 2013 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 
Common Core State Standards Initiative: http://www.corestandards.org/math 
Lawyers' Committee for Civil Rights of the San Francisco Bay Area (LCCR): http://www.lccr.com 
Northwest Evaluation Association, Measures of Academic Progress: http://www.nwea.org 
University of California, Mathematics Diagnostic Testing Project: http://mdtp.ucsd.edu 

 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation adopted: February 9, 2016 
revised: December 11, 2018 



1 
**NEW** 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Administrative Regulation 
Instruction  
AR 6152.1 
 
PLACEMENT IN MATHEMATICS COURSES 
 
Placement Protocols 
 

Note:  Education Code 51224.7 mandates that any district that serves 9th-grade students adopt protocols for student 
placement in mathematics courses based on multiple objective academic measures, such as statewide assessments, 
including interim and summative assessments; placement tests that are aligned to state-adopted content standards in 
mathematics; classroom assignment and grades; and report cards. Districts that serve students transitioning from 
elementary to middle or junior high school may also adopt a placement protocol based on similar measures. The 
following section should be revised to reflect the grade levels at which the placement protocols will be applied, specific 
tests and other measures used for placement purposes, and the performance level on each assessment or minimum 
grade that will be used to determine a student's readiness for specific mathematics courses. 

 
In determining student placement in mathematics courses for students entering grade 9, the 
Superintendent or designee shall assess whether each student has the prerequisite skills for success in 
the course and consider student and parent/guardian requests. Such determinations shall be based on 
multiple measures, including, but not limited to, the following: 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 60640, mathematics assessments in the California Assessment of Student 
Performance and Progress are administered at grades 3-8 and 11. 

 
1. Interim and summative grade 8 mathematics assessments from the California Assessment of 

Student Performance and Progress 
 
2. For students with disabilities, an alternate test or other measures when designated in a student's 

individualized education program (IEP) 
 
3. Other assessments such as Measures of Academic Progress, the readiness tests of the 

University of California's Mathematics Diagnosis Testing Project, and/or district benchmark 
assessments 

 
4. The student's grades in his/her previous mathematics course 
 
5. The final mathematics grade on the end-of-year report card 

(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement); (cf. 6142.92 - Mathematics Instruction) 
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study); (cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 
(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 

 
Individual student performance data shall be analyzed each spring prior to scheduling and placing 
students into secondary mathematics courses. Students and parents/guardians shall be notified in 
writing by the end of the school year as to the mathematics course in which the student has been 
placed. 
 
No student shall be required to repeat a mathematics course which he/she has successfully completed 
in accordance with district's placement protocols. 



2 
 

Note:  Recommendations by teachers or counselors are generally considered subjective and therefore do not meet the 
requirement of Education Code 51224.7 that placement in mathematics courses be based on objective measures. The 
following optional paragraph authorizes staff recommendations to be considered when placing a student in a higher 
level mathematics course than he/she would be assigned based on the district's protocol, but such recommendations 
should not be the sole basis for placing a student in a lower level class. 

 
When a student does not qualify to be enrolled in a particular mathematics course based on a 
consideration of the objective measures specified in the placement protocol, he/she may nevertheless 
be admitted to the course based on the recommendation of a teacher or counselor who has personal 
knowledge of the student's academic ability. 
 
Students who exhibit deficits in knowledge and skills needed to advance to a higher level mathematics 
course may receive supplemental instruction to improve achievement of mathematic content 
standards. 
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards); (cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction) 
 
Reevaluation 
 
Within the first month of the school year, mathematics course placements shall be individually 
reevaluated to ensure placement in the most rigorous mathematics course for which the student has 
the potential for success. 
 
Criteria for reevaluating each student's placement shall include, but are not limited to, course 
preassessment results, attendance, and student performance in the first month of the school year as 
determined by teacher observation and grades on assignments and tests. Student and parent/guardian 
request for course placement may also be considered. 
 
Notification of Placement Protocol 
 
The district's policy and protocols related to student placement in mathematics courses shall be posted 
on the district's web site.  (Education Code 51224.7) 
(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall also make the district's placement policy, protocols, and course 
sequence readily accessible to students, parents/guardians, and staff at school sites and/or in student 
handbooks. 
 
Appeals 
 

Note:  Education Code 51224.7 mandates that the district's policy or protocol offer a clear and timely recourse for 
any student and parent/guardian who question the student's placement. See the accompanying Board policy. The 
following paragraph contains timelines that may be revised to reflect district practice. 

 
Within 10 school days of an initial placement decision or a placement decision upon reevaluation, a 
student and his/her parent/guardian who disagree with the placement may appeal the decision to the 
Superintendent or designee. The Superintendent or designee shall decide whether or not to overrule 
the placement determination within 10 school days of receiving the appeal. 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation approved: December 11, 2018 



1 
 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
Instruction  
BP 6170.1 
 
TRANSITIONAL KINDERGARTEN 
 

Note:  The following policy is for use by districts that maintain kindergarten and may be revised to reflect district 
practice. Education Code 48000 provides that children are eligible for kindergarten enrollment if they have their fifth 
birthday on or before September 1 in that school year; see AR 5111 - Admission.  Pursuant to Education Code 48000, 
any child whose fifth birthday is between September 2 and December 2 must be offered a transitional kindergarten 
(TK) program. 
Education Code 48000 defines TK as the first year of a two-year kindergarten program that uses a modified 
kindergarten curriculum that is age and developmentally appropriate. Many of the requirements applicable to 
kindergarten (e.g., class size, minimum school day, facilities) are also applicable to TK. The district will receive 
funding based on average daily attendance (ADA) for students in a TK program that meets the requirements specified 
in Education Code 48000. 
For guidance on implementing TK programs, see the Transitional Kindergarten Implementation Guide: A Resource 
for California Public School District Administrators and Teachers, published by the California Department of 
Education (CDE). 

 
The Governing Board of Education desires to offer a high-quality transitional kindergarten (TK) 
program for eligible children who do not yet meet the minimum age criterion for kindergarten. The 
TK program shall assist TK childrenstudents in developing the academic, social, and emotional skills 
they need to succeed in kindergarten and beyond. 
 
The district's TK program shall be the first year of a two-year kindergarten program.  (Education 
Code 48000) 
 
The Board encourages ongoing collaboration among district preschool staff, other preschool 
providers, elementary teachers, administrators, and parents/guardians in programthe development, 
implementation, and evaluation of the district's TK program. 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
 
Eligibility 
 
The district's TK program shall admit children whose fifth birthday is from September 2 through 
December 2.  (Education Code 48000) 
 

Upon enrollmentNote:  The CDE's "Transitional Kindergarten FAQs" clarify that children are required to have 
documentation of required immunizations or request, parentsa valid exemption prior to admission to TK. For 
information about required immunizations and exemptions, see BP/AR 5141.31 - Immunizations. 

 
Parents/guardians of eligible children shall be notified of the availability of the TK program and age, 
residency, immunization, and any other enrollment requirements.  Enrollment in the TK program 
shall be voluntary. 
(cf. 5111 - Admission) 
(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency) 
(cf. 5111.12 - Residency Based on Parent/Guardian Employment) 
(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases) 



2 
 
(cf. 5141.3 - Health Examinations) 
(cf. 5141.31 - Immunizations) 
(cf. 5141.32 - Health Screening for School Entry) 
 

Note:  The following paragraph is optional.  If the district chooses to allow kindergarten-eligible children to enroll in 
the TK program, CDE recommends that the district establish criteria to determine selection requirements. The 
parent/guardian of a kindergarten-eligible child who is enrolled in TK must, at the end of the year, sign a Kindergarten 
Continuance Form verifying that he/she agrees to have the child enroll in kindergarten the following year; see section 
"Continuation in Kindergarten" below. 

 
Upon request of a child's parents/guardians, the district may, on a case-by-case basis after the 
Superintendent or designee determines that it is in the child's best interest, admit into the district's TK 
program a child whose fifth birthday is on or before September 1 and who is therefore eligible for 
kindergarten. 
 

TheNote:  The following paragraph is optional. Pursuant to Education Code 48000, the district may, at its discretion, 
determine whether to allow admittance of children whose fifth birthday is after December 2. Such students may be 
admitted at any time during the school year, including at the beginning of the year. Education Code 48000 provides 
that districts will not receive ADA apportionment for a child whose birthday is after December 2 until the child reaches 
his/her fifth birthday. 

 
At any time during the school year, the district may admit into the TK program a child whose fifth 
birthday is after December 2 of that same school year, provided that the child is admitted during the 
school year on or after his/her fifth birthday and the Superintendent or designee recommends that 
enrollment in a TK program is in the child's best interest. and the child's parents/guardians approve. 
Prior to such enrollment, the child's parents/guardians shall be provided information regarding the 
advantages and disadvantages and any other explanatory information about the effect of early 
admittance.  (Education Code 48000) 
 
Curriculum and Instruction 
 
The district's TK program shall be based on a modified kindergarten curriculum that is age and 
developmentally appropriate.  (Education Code 48000) 
 
(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation) 
(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials) 
 

Note:  Education Code 48000 states the Legislature's intent that the TK curriculum be aligned to the California 
Preschool Learning Foundations developed by CDE. These standards address essential skills in the subject areas listed 
below. The standards and companion preschool curriculum frameworks are available on CDE's web site. 

 
The program shall be aligned with the preschool learning foundations and preschool curriculum 
frameworks developed by the California Department of Education. (CDE). It shall be designed to 
facilitate students' development in essential skills related to language and literacy, mathematics, 
physical development, health, visual and performing arts, science, history-social science, English 
language development, and social-emotional development.  
(cf. 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education) 
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 
(cf. 6174 - Education for English Language Learners) 
The Board shall fix the length of the TK school day so that the district's annual instructional minutes 
offered to TK students shall be the same as the number of instructional minutes offered to 
kindergarten students, as reflected in its annual audit. 
 



3 
 

Note:  The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. Education Code 37202 permits 
districts to maintain TK and kindergarten classes for different lengths of time during the school day, either at the same 
or a different school site. Districts offering TK classes for different lengths of time are still required to meet the 
minimum and maximum length of school day provided in law. Pursuant to Education Code 46111, 46115, and 46117, 
at the kindergarten and TK level the minimum school day is three hours (180 minutes), including recess but excluding 
noon intermission, and the maximum school day is four hours (240 minutes), excluding recess, unless the district has 
adopted an extended-day kindergarten pursuant to Education Code 8973. However, pursuant to Education Code 
46119, if the district has fewer than 40 kindergarten students, the Governing Board may apply to the Superintendent 
of Public Instruction to maintain two kindergarten classes of 150 minutes each, including recesses, taught on the same 
day by the same teacher. Also see AR 6112 - School Day. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code 48003, districts are required to provide an annual report to CDE regarding the type of 
kindergarten program offered by the district, including part day, full day, or both. The School Information Form 2017, 
located on the CDE web site, requires a report on the type of TK program offered. 

 
The Board shall establish the length(s) of the school day in the district's TK program. TK programs 
may be maintained for different lengths of time either at the same or different school sites, as long as 
the school day is at least three hours but no more than four hours. The Superintendent or designee 
shall annually report to CDE as to whether the district's TK programs are offered full day, part day, 
or both.  (Education Code 37202, 46111, 46115, 46117, 48003) 
(cf. 6111 - School Calendar); (cf. 6112 - School Day) 
 

Note:  The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. According to CDE's "Transitional 
Kindergarten FAQs," it is the intent of the law to provide separate and unique experiences for TK and kindergarten 
students. However, districts have flexibility to determine how best to meet the curricular needs of each child and 
whether TK and kindergarten students may be enrolled in the same classrooms. 

 
TK students may be placed in the same classrooms as kindergarten students when necessary, provided 
that the instructional program is differentiated to meet student needs. 
 

Note:  AB 1808 (Ch. 32, Statutes of 2018) amended Education Code 8235 and 48000 to allow districts to place 4-
year-old children enrolled in a California State Preschool Program into a TK program and to commingle children from 
both programs in the same classroom as long as all of the requirements of each program are met and the district adheres 
to specified requirements, including that the classroom does not contain children enrolled in TK for a second year or 
children enrolled in a regular kindergarten. Also see BP/AR 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education. 

 
TK students may be placed in a classroom commingled with 4-year-old students from a California 
State Preschool Program as long as the classroom does not include students enrolled in TK for a 
second year or students enrolled in a regular kindergarten.  (Education Code 8235, 48000) 
 
Staffing 
 

Note:  To be qualified to teach a TK class, the teacher must possess an appropriate multiple subjects or early childhood 
education credential issued by the Commission on Teacher Credentialing authorizing instruction in TK. Education 
Code 48000 establishes additional requirements for credentialed teachers who are first assigned to a TK class after 
July 1, 2015, as provided below. 
TK assignments are subject to assignment monitoring and reporting by the County Superintendent of Schools in 
accordance with Education Code 44258.9. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that teachers assigned to teach in TK classes possess a 
teaching credential or permit from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC) that authorizes 
such instruction. 
(cf. 4112.2 - Certification) 
 



4 
 
A credentialed teacher who is first assigned to a TK class after July 1, 2015, shall, by August 1, 2020, 
have at least 24 units in early childhood education and/or child development, comparable experience 
in a preschool setting, and/or a child development teacher permit issued by the CTC.  (Education 
Code 48000) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may provide professional development as needed to ensure that TK 
teachers are knowledgeable about the standards and effective instructional methods for teaching 
young children. 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
 
Continuation to Kindergarten 
 

Note:  The following section is consistent with guidance in CDE's "Transitional Kindergarten FAQs." 
 
Students who complete the TK program shall be eligible to continue in kindergarten the following 
school year. Parents/guardians of such students shall not be required to submit a signed Kindergarten 
Continuance Form for kindergarten attendance. 
 

Note:  The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that allow kindergarten-eligible children to enroll in 
TK; see "Eligibility" section above. When such students are subsequently enrolled in kindergarten, the district is 
required to obtain a signed Kindergarten Continuance Form in order to receive kindergarten ADA for those children 
since they would otherwise be age-eligible for first grade. CDE recommends that approval for a student to continue 
in kindergarten not be sought until near the end of the year of TK, since permission obtained unreasonably far in 
advance could be found invalid. 

 
However, whenever children who would otherwise be age-eligible for kindergarten are enrolled in 
TK, the Superintendent or designee shall obtain a Kindergarten Continuance Form signed by the 
parent/guardian near the end of the TK year consenting to the child's enrollment in kindergarten the 
following year.  
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 46300, the district may not include for ADA purposes the attendance of any student 
for more than two years in a combination of TK and kindergarten. 

 
A student shall not attend more than two years in a combination of TK and kindergarten.  (Education 
Code 46300) 
(cf. 5123 - Promotion/Acceleration/Retention) 
 
Assessment 
 

Note:  The following section may be revised to reflect district practice. One assessment resource for TK students is 
CDE's Desired Results Developmental Profile, which is designed to assess the developmental progression of all 
children from early infancy to kindergarten entry. 

 
The Superintendent or designee may develop or identify appropriate formal and/or informal 
assessments of TK students' development and progress. He/she shall monitor and regularly report to 
the Board regarding program implementation and the progress of students in meeting related 
academic standards. 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability); (cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 
For a child whose fifth birthday is on or before September 1 and who is therefore eligible for 
kindergarten but was enrolled in TK due to the results of an evaluation and parental agreement, they 
shall be assessed again at the end of their first TK year and/or at the recommendation of the TK 
teacher.  



5 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
8235  California State Preschool Program 
8973  Extended-day kindergarten 
37202  School calendar; equivalency of instructional minutes 
44258.9  Assignment monitoring by county superintendent of schools 
46111  Kindergarten, hours of attendance 
46114-46119  Minimum school day, kindergarten 
46300  Computation of ADA, inclusion of kindergarten and transitional kindergarten 
48000  Age of admission, kindergarten and transitional kindergarten 
48002  Evidence of minimum age required to enter kindergarten or first grade 
48003  Kindergarten annual report 
48200  Compulsory education, starting at age six 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
What Boards of Education Can Do About Kindergarten Readiness, Governance Brief, May 2016 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Transitional Kindergarten FAQs 
Desired Results Developmental Profile, 2015 
Transitional Kindergarten Implementation Guide: A Resource for California Public School District 
Administrators and Teachers, 2013 
California Preschool Curriculum Framework, Vol. 3, 2013 
California Preschool Learning Foundations, Vol. 3, 2012 
California Preschool Curriculum Framework, Vol. 2, 2011 
California Preschool Learning Foundations, Vol. 2, 2010 
California Preschool Curriculum Framework, Vol. 1, 2010 
California Preschool Learning Foundations, Vol. 1, 2008 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 
California Kindergarten Association: http://www.ckanet.org 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing: http://www.ctc.ca.gov 
Transitional Kindergarten California: http://www.tkcalifornia.org 

 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: June 17, 2015 
revised: December 11, 2018 



1 
 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
Instruction  
BP 6178 
 
Vocational EducationCAREER TECHNICAL EDUCATION 
 

Note:  The following policy is for use by districts that maintain any of grades 7-12.  Education Code 51220 requires 
that the adopted course of study for grades 7-12 include courses in career technical education (CTE); see BP/AR 6143 
- Courses of Study. 
Funding for CTE programs may be available through the federal Strengthening Career and Technical Education for 
the 21st Century Act, sometimes referred to as Perkins V (20 USC 2301-2414, as amended by P.L. 115-224 and 
effective July 1, 2019), and state grant programs such as the California Career Pathways Trust pursuant to Education 
Code 53010-53016 and the California Career Technical Education Incentive Grant Program pursuant to Education 
Code 53070-53076.4, as amended by AB 1808 (Ch. 32, Statutes of 2018). In addition, secondary schools may offer 
CTE through partnership academies (Education Code 54690-54697), regional occupational centers and programs 
(ROC/Ps) (Education Code 52300-52335.12), and/or district-funded programs. 
 
The following policy should be revised to reflect program(s) offered by the district and grade levels at which such 
programs shall be offered. 

 
The Governing Board of Education desires to provide a quality, expanded and modernized vocational 
andcomprehensive career technical education (CTE) program in the secondary grades which provides 
services and activities that are of sufficient size, scopeintegrates core academic instruction with 
technical and quality to be effective.  The goal of the program is to provide for an integration of 
academic occupational instruction in order to increase student achievement, graduation rates, and 
vocational components through a coherent sequence of courses to ensure learning in all 
subjects.readiness for postsecondary education and employment. The district's CTE program shall be 
designed to help students develop the academic, career, and technical skills needed to succeed in a 
knowledge- and skills-based economy. The program shall also provide curriculum and program 
strategies reflecting workplace needs. 
 
The district's program shall provide linkages between secondary and postsecondary vocational and 
technical education, including the implementation of tech-prep programs. Students shall also be given 
a stronginclude a rigorous academic component and provide students with practical experience and 
understanding of all aspects of an industry. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall expand the use of technology in the district's vocational 
program. He/she shall also provide professional development programs to teachers, counselors and 
administrators designed to provide effective practices to improve parental and community 
involvement and to ensure that teachers stay current with an industry. 
(cf. 1700 - Relations Between Private Industry and the Schools) 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study); (cf. 6200 - Adult Education) 
 
The district's CTE program shall focus on preparing students to enter current or emerging high-skill, 
high-wage, and/or high-demand occupations.  CTE opportunities may be offered through linked 
learning programs, partnership academies, apprenticeship programs or orientation to apprenticeships, 
regional occupational centers or programs (ROC/Ps), charter schools, small learning communities, 
magnet programs, or other programs that expose students to career options while preparing them for 
future careers in a given industry or interest area. 



2 
 
(cf. 6030 - Integrated0420.4 - Charter School Authorization); (cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall explore available funding sources that may be used to support 
CTE programs. The Board shall review and approve all district plans and applications for the use of 
district, state, and/or federal funds supporting CTE. 
(cf. 3230 - Federal Grant Funds) 
 

Note:  State model curriculum standards for CTE for grades 7-12 integrate the state's academic content standards with 
industry-specific knowledge and skills in 58 career pathways organized into 15 industry sectors: agriculture and 
natural resources; arts, media, and entertainment; building trades and construction; education, child development, and 
family services; energy and utilities; engineering and design; fashion and interior design; finance and business; health 
science and medical technology; hospitality, tourism, and recreation; information technology; manufacturing and 
product development; marketing, sales, and service; public services; and transportation. The state's curriculum 
framework for CTE provides guidance in implementing the state content standards.  Any district that adopts a course 
of study that meets or exceeds the state model curriculum standards will be deemed to have satisfied the requirement 
of Education Code 51228 that the district offer students in grades 7-12 the opportunity to attain entry-level 
employment skills in business or industry upon high school graduation; see BP 6143 - Courses of Study. 

 
The Board shall adopt district standards for CTE which meet or exceed the state's model content 
standards and describe the essential knowledge and skills that students enrolled in these courses are 
expected to master.  The course curriculum shall be aligned with district-adopted standards and the 
state's curriculum framework. 
(cf. 6011 - Academic and Vocational InstructionStandards) 
(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation) 
 
The district's program shall provide equal access to students who are members of special populations.  
Students who are members of special populations shall not be unlawfully discriminated against on 
the basis of their status as a member of a special population.  (20 USC 2354) 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
Expenditures of Supplemental Funding 
 

EveryNote:  Pursuant to Education Code 52376, the following two paragraphs are mandated for districts that accept 
funds for the purpose of developing and implementing, in consultation with the ROC/P and community college serving 
the geographic area of the district, a CTE program for high school students. 

 
At least every three years, the Board shall compare the district's existing vocational curriculum, course 
content, and course sequence of CTE with the model state curriculum standards.  (Education Code 
51226, 52376) 
(cf. 3440 - Inventories) 
 

Note:  Education Code 52376 requires districts to determine the extent to which their CTE courses may offer an 
alternative means for completing course requirements for high school graduation. In addition, Education Code 51225.3 
authorizes the Board to include a course in CTE as an alternative to the visual or performing arts or foreign language 
course requirement for high school graduation; see BP 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall establish procedures for the systematicsystematically review of 
district vocational education classesthe district's CTE courses to determine the degree to which each 
classcourse may offer an alternative means for completing and receiving credit for specific portions 
of the course of study prescribed by the district for high school graduation.  The Superintendent or 
designee shall present the Board with evidence that enables the Board toThe Board shall ensure that 
these classes are equivalent in content and rigor to the courses prescribed for graduation.  (Education 
Code 52376) 



3 
 
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 
(cf. 6146.11 - Alternative Credits Toward Graduation) 
(cf. 6181 - Alternative Schools6146.2 - Certificate of Proficiency/High School Equivalency) 
 
Advisory Committee 
 

Note:  Education Code 51760.1 authorizes districts, county offices of education, ROC/Ps, and partnership academies 
to provide work-based learning opportunities which may include, but are not limited to, work experience education as 
defined in Education Code 51764, community classrooms or cooperative CTE programs as defined in Education Code 
52372.1, and job shadowing as defined in Education Code 51769; see BP/AR 6178.1 - Work-Based Learning.  In 
addition, although not specified in state law, other examples of work-based learning opportunities cited in the CDE's 
publication Multiple Pathways to Student Success: Envisioning the New California High School include student 
internships/field study, apprenticeships, service learning, work in social/civic enterprises or school-based enterprises 
such as student stores, and technology-based or other simulated work experiences. 

 
The Board Superintendent or designee shall appoint a develop partnerships with local businesses and 
industries to ensure that course sequences, career technical and integrated curriculum, classroom 
instruction and projects, and assessments have real-world relevance and reflect labor market needs 
and priorities. He/she shall also work to develop connections with businesses, postsecondary 
institutions, community organizations, and/or other employers to provide students with actual or 
simulated work-based learning opportunities. 
(cf. 1700 - Relations Between Private Industry and the Schools) 
(cf. 5113.2 - Work Permits) 
(cf. 6178.1 - Work-Based Learning) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with postsecondary institutions to ensure that the 
district's program is articulated with postsecondary programs in order to provide a sequential course 
of study. Articulation opportunities may include dual or concurrent enrollment in community college 
courses. 
(cf. 6172.1 - Concurrent Enrollment in College Classes) 
 

Note:  Education Code 8070 requires the Board to appoint a CTE advisory committee as composed of representatives 
from specified groups, as detailed below. During the Federal Program Monitoring process, CDE staff will review 
whether the district has appointed such a committee. 
 
In addition, pursuant to 20 USC 2354, as amended by P.L. 115-224, districts that receive Perkins V funding are 
required by lawto involve specified stakeholders in conducting a needs assessment and developing the district 
application, and on a continuing basis thereafter. One way to accomplish this is to include such stakeholders on the 
CTE advisory committee. Other programs may have similar requirements for stakeholder involvement. The following 
paragraph may be revised to reflect requirements applicable to programs offered by the district. 

 
The Board shall appoint a CTE advisory committee to develop recommendations on the career 
technical educationdistrict's CTE program and provideto serve as a liaison between the district and 
potential employers.  The committee shall consist of at least one student, teacher, business 
representative, industry representative, school administrator, member of the general public 
knowledgeable about the disadvantaged, and representative of the field office of the California 
Employment Development Department.  (Education Code 8070) 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 
 

Note:  The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. Among the criteria for admission 
to the University of California (UC) or California State University (CSU) system is a requirement that high school 
students satisfactorily complete 15 units of specified courses ("a-g" courses).  These include a growing number of 
CTE courses that connect knowledge of academic content with practical or work-related applications. Education Code 
51229 requires that districts annually provide parents/guardians of students in grades 9-12 with (1) a brief explanation 



4 
 

of the a-g course requirements; (2) a list of UC and CSU web sites that provide related information and a list of 
certified a-g courses; (3) a brief description of CTE, as defined by CDE; (4) the Internet address for the portion of the 
CDE web site where students can learn more about CTE; and (5) information about how students may meet with 
school counselors to help them choose courses that will meet college admission requirements and/or to enroll in CTE 
courses. See AR 6143 - Courses of Study and E 5145.6 - Parental Notifications. 
 
In addition, districts that include a course in CTE as an alternative to the visual or performing arts or foreign language 
course requirement for high school graduation, as authorized by Education Code 51225.3, are required by Education 
Code 48980 to provide a list of CTE courses offered by the district that satisfy the a-g course requirements for college 
admission and to specify which requirements they satisfy. Districts that do not allow this alternative graduation 
requirement should modify the following paragraph accordingly. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall inform all secondary students and their parents/guardians about 
the CTE experiences available in the district, CTE courses that satisfy college admission criteria, and, 
if applicable, CTE courses that satisfy high school graduation requirements.  In addition, secondary 
students shall receive individualized academic counseling which provides information about 
academic and CTE opportunities related to the student's career goals. 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 
 

Note:  Pursuant to 34 CFR 100 (Appendix B), the notice specified below may be made in local newspapers, 
publications or media reaching target populations, or by other means and should include a brief summary of program 
offerings, admission criteria, and the name and contact information of the person designated to coordinate Title IX 
and Section 504 compliance activity. If the population within the district contains a community of persons with limited 
English language skills, the notification must be disseminated in the languages of the community. See BP 5145.6 - 
Parental Notifications for state requirements pertaining to the translation of parental notifications. 

 
Prior to the beginning of each school year, the Superintendent or designee shall advise students, 
parents/guardians, employees, and the general public that all CTE opportunities are offered without 
regard to any actual or perceived characteristic protected from discrimination by law. The notification 
shall be disseminated in languages other than English as needed and shall state that the district will 
take steps to ensure that the lack of English language skills will not be a barrier to admission and 
participation in the district's CTE program.  (20 USC 2354; 34 CFR 100 Appendix B, 104.8, 106.9) 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
 

Note:  The following paragraph is for use by districts that receive funding through Perkins V for basic CTE programs 
pursuant to 20 USC 2301-2414. See the accompanying administrative regulation for further information regarding the 
participation of private school students and staff in district programs. 

 
To the extent required by law, the Superintendent or designee shall invite the participation of private 
school students in CTE programs supported by federal funding under the Strengthening Career and 
Technical Education for the 21st Century Act (Perkins).  (20 USC 2397) 
 

Note:  Teachers of technical, trade, or vocational courses must possess a single subject credential or a designated 
subjects credential issued by the Commission on Teacher Credentialing which authorizes teaching CTE courses.  The 
designated subjects CTE credential is available in 15 subjects which reflect the 15 industry sectors identified in the 
state's model curriculum standards; see AR 4112.2 - Certification. In order to obtain the preliminary designated 
subjects credential, teachers must have at least three years of work experience directly related to each industry sector 
specified on the credential. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that teachers of CTE courses possess the qualifications 
and credentials necessary to teach their assigned courses. He/she shall also provide teachers and 
administrators with professional development designed to enhance their knowledge of standards-



5 
 
aligned CTE and shall provide opportunities for CTE teachers to collaborate with teachers of 
academic courses in the development and implementation of integrated curriculum models. 
(cf. 4112.2 - Certification) 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development); (cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide counselors and other guidance personnel with 
professional development that includes, but is not limited to, information about current workforce 
needs and trends, requirements of the district's CTE program, work-based learning opportunities, and 
postsecondary education and employment options following high school. 
 

Note:  The following paragraph is optional. Education Code 17078.72 provides funding for improving and expanding 
CTE programs through construction of new facilities, remodeling of existing facilities, and/or purchase of equipment. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall regularly assess district needs for facilities, technologies, and 
equipment to increase students' access to the district's CTE program. 
(cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan) 
(cf. 3440 - Inventories) 
(cf. 3512 - Equipment) 
(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan) 
 

Note:  The following paragraph may be revised to reflect requirements applicable to programs offered by the district. 
Pursuant to Education Code 52060, the district must annually review its progress toward the goals identified in its 
local control and accountability plan, including, when applicable, measures of student achievement such as the 
percentage of students who have successfully completed courses that satisfy the requirements for CTE sequences or 
programs of study that align with state CTE standards and frameworks. The California School Dashboard provides a 
tool to assist in evaluation of district and school performance and includes measures of CTE pathway completion 
within the college/career readiness indicator. 
 
In addition, each district receiving Perkins V funding must evaluate its progress in achieving specific performance 
levels on core indicators as detailed in the state plan and 20 USC 2323, as amended by P.L. 115-224. Pursuant to 20 
USC 2343, if the district falls below 90 percent on any of these targets, the district will be required to develop and 
implement an improvement plan. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall annually report to the Board achievement data on participating 
students, including, but not limited to, the percentage of participating students who successfully 
complete CTE programs, their performance on state and district academic achievement tests, and 
graduation rate. Data shall be disaggregated by program and various student subgroups. Based on 
such data, the Board shall determine the need for program improvements and update the goals in the 
district's local control and accountability plan as necessary. 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 
(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 
(cf. 6190 - Evaluation of the Instructional Program) 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
8070  Appointment1205  Classification of vocationalcounties 
8006-8155  Career technical education advisory committee 

41541  Categorical Education Block Grant 
17078.70-17078.72  Career technical education facilities 
33430-33432  Health science and medical technology grants 
35168  Inventory of equipment 
41540-41544  Targeted instructional improvement block grant 
44257.3  CTC recognition of study in linked learning teaching methods 
44260-44260.1  Designated subjects career technical education credential 
44260.9  Designated subjects career technical education credential 
48430  Legislative intent; continuation education schools and classes 



6 
 
51225.3  Requirements for graduation commencing with 1988-89 school year 
51226  Model curriculum standards 
51228  Graduation requirements; minimum standards; required curriculum; pupil demonstration of competence 

48980  Parental notifications 
51220-51229  Courses of study, grades 7-12 
51760-51769.5  Work experience education 
52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 
52300-52499.666  Career technical education 
52519-52520  Adult education, occupational training 
53010-53016  California Career Pathways Trust 
53070-53076.4  The California Career Technical Education Incentive Grant Program 
53086  California Career Resource Network 
54690-54699.1  California Partnership Academies 
54750-54760  California Partnership Academies, green technology and goods movement occupations 
56363  Related services for students with disabilities; specially designed career technical education 
66205.5-66205.9  Approval of career technical education courses for admission to California colleges 
88500-88551  Community college economic and workforce development program 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
54950-54963 Brown Act 
LABOR CODE 
3070-3099.5  Apprenticeships 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
1635  Credit for work experience education 
3051.14  Specially designed career technical education for students with disabilities 
10070-10075  Work experience education 
10080-10092  Community classrooms 
10100-10111  Cooperative vocational education 
11500-11508  Regional occupational centers and programs 
11535-11538  Career technical education contracts with private postsecondary schools 
11610-11611 Regional adult and vocational education councils 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 8 
200-240  Apprenticeships 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
2301-2415  Carl D. Perkins Vocational2414  Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 21st Century Act 
6301-6578  Improving the Academic Achievement of 1998the Disadvantaged 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
100  Appendix B Guidelines for eliminating discrimination in career technical education programs 
104.1-104.39  Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 
106.1-106.61 Discrimination on the basis of sex, effectuating Title IX 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
A Governance Perspective: Interviews with School Board Members from the Nine Linked Learning Initiative School Districts, March 2014 
The Linked Learning Approach to High School Reform, Governance Brief, January 2014 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
California Career Technical Education Model Curriculum Standards, Grades Seven Through Twelve, January 2013 
Multiple Pathways to Student Success: Envisioning the New California High School, 2010 
Career Technical Education Framework for California Public Schools, Grades Seven Through Twelve, January 2007 
WEB SITES 
CDE, SecondaryCSBA: http://www.csba.org 
Association for Career and Technical Education, Academic and Career Integration: http://www.acteonline.org 
California Association of Regional Occupational Centers and Programs: http://www.carocp.org 
California Career Resource Network: http://www.californiacareers.info 
California Department of Education, Career Technical Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov/shsd/acici/ct 
USDECalifornia Department of Employment Development: http://www.edd.ca.gov 
California Department of Industrial Relations: http://www.dir.ca.gov 
California Workforce Development Board: http://www.cwdb.ca.gov 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing: http://www.ctc.ca.gov 
University of California, a-g Course Submissions: http://www.ucop.edu/a-gGuide/ag/course_submissions 
U.S. Department of Education, Office of Vocational and Adult Education:  
http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/OVAElist/ovae/pi/cte/index.html 
U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics: http://www.bls.gov 

 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007 
revised: December 11, 2018 



1 
**NEW** 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Administrative Regulation 
Instruction  
AR 6178 
 
CAREER TECHNICAL EDUCATION 
 

Note:  The following optional administrative regulation should be revised to reflect program(s) offered by the district. 
 
Federal Grants for Career Technical Education (Perkins) 
 

Note:  The following optional section is for use by districts that receive basic grants to support programs of career 
technical education (CTE) pursuant to the Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 21st Century Act, 
often referred to as Perkins V (20 USC 2301-2355, as amended by P.L. 115-224). As amended, the "hold harmless" 
provision has been replaced with a guarantee that each state receive a minimum grant equal to 90 percent of its prior 
year allocation, effective in fiscal year 2021. 
 
During the Federal Program Monitoring (FPM) process, California Department of Education (CDE) staff will review 
whether the district uses these federal funds to supplement, not supplant, state and local funds for CTE activities, as 
required by 20 USC 2391, and whether funds are used for appropriate purposes as described in 20 USC 2355 and in 
the state plan adopted pursuant to 20 USC 2342. As amended by P.L. 115-224, 20 USC 2342 authorizes states to 
develop a one-year transition plan until Perkins V becomes effective July 1, 2019, after which a four-year state plan 
will be required. 

 
The district shall submit to the California Department of Education an application for a basic grant of 
the federal Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 21st Century Act. The application 
shall address the components specified in 20 USC 2354 and any additional requirements specified in 
the state plan developed pursuant to 20 USC 2342.  (20 USC 2354) 
(cf. 3230 - Federal Grant Funds) 
 
The district shall conduct a needs assessment in accordance with 20 USC 2354, which shall be 
updated at least once every two years.  The needs assessment shall be conducted in consultation with 
representatives of district CTE programs, postsecondary CTE programs, state or local workforce 
development boards and businesses, parents/guardians, students, and other specified stakeholders.  
(20 USC 2354) 
 

Note:  The district may use Perkins V and other federal, state, and/or district funds to meet the program requirements 
listed below. P.L. 115-224 amended 20 USC 2355 to streamline the allowable uses of funds and eliminate the 
additional list of permissible uses. 

 
To meet the needs identified in the needs assessment, the Superintendent or designee shall develop, 
coordinate, implement, or improve CTE programs that are of sufficient size, scope, and quality to be 
effective and that fulfill the following purposes:  (20 USC 2355) 
 
1. Provide career exploration and career development activities through an organized, systematic 

framework designed to aid students, including students in the middle grades, in making 
informed plans and decisions about future education and career opportunities and programs 
of study. Such activities shall occur before students enroll and while they are participating in 
a CTE program, and may include: 
 



2 
 

a. Introductory courses or activities focused on career exploration and career awareness, 
including non-traditional fields 

 
b. Readily available career and labor market information, including information on 

occupational supply and demand, educational requirements, other information on 
careers aligned to economic priorities, and employment sectors 

 
c. Programs and activities related to the development of student graduation and career 

plans 
 
d. Career guidance and academic counselors who provide information on postsecondary 

education and career options 
 
e. Any other activity that advances knowledge of career opportunities and assists 

students in making informed decisions about future education and employment goals, 
including nontraditional fields 

 
f. Activities that provide students with strong experience in, and comprehensive 

understanding of, all aspects of an industry 
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 

 
2. Provide the skills necessary to pursue careers in high-skill, high-wage, or in-demand industry 

sectors or occupations 
(cf. 5113.2 - Work Permits) 
(cf. 6178.1 - Work-Based Learning) 

 
3. Integrate academic skills into CTE programs and programs of study to support participating 

students in meeting state academic standards 
 
4. Provide professional development for teachers, school leaders, administrators, specialized 

instructional support personnel, guidance counselors, and/or paraprofessionals, which may 
include the types of activities listed in 20 USC 2355 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 

 
5. Plan and carry out elements that support the implementation of CTE programs and programs 

of study and that result in increased student achievement. Such elements may include 
curriculum aligned with program requirements, sustainable relationships among community 
stakeholders, opportunities for students to participate in accelerated learning programs, 
equipment and instructional materials aligned with business and industry needs, and other 
activities specified in 20 USC 2355. 

 
6. Develop and implement evaluations of the activities funded by the grant 

(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
(cf. 6190 - Evaluation of the Instructional Program) 

 
Note:  Pursuant to 20 USC 2354, the district application for Perkins V funding must describe how individuals will not 
be discriminated against based on their status as members of "special populations," as defined in 20 USC 2302 as 
amended by P.L. 115-224. In addition, a district that receives federal aid is required by 34 CFR 100 (Appendix B), 
104.8, and 106.9 to take "continuing steps" to notify students, parents/guardians, employees, employee organizations, 



3 
 

and applicants for admission and employment that it does not discriminate in its educational programs or activities. 
See BP 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities. 
 
During the FPM process, CDE staff will check whether the district complies with requirements to (1) ensure equitable 
access by special population students through outreach, recruitment, enrollment, and placement activities; (2) identify 
and adopt strategies to overcome barriers to access or success in the program; (3) ensure that counseling materials and 
activities, including student program selection and career/employment selection, and promotional and recruitment 
efforts are nondiscriminatory; and (4) advise students, parents/guardians, employees, and the general public, prior to 
the beginning of the school year, that all CTE opportunities are offered without regard to race, color, national origin, 
sex, or disability in accordance with 34 CFR 100 (Appendix B). 

 
The district's program shall provide activities to prepare special populations for high-skill, high-wage, 
or in-demand industry sectors or occupations that will lead to self-sufficiency. Special populations 
shall be provided with equal access to CTE programs and shall not be unlawfully discriminated 
against.  Special populations include, but are not limited to, students with disabilities, students from 
economically disadvantaged families, pregnant and parenting students, out-of-work individuals, 
English learners, homeless students, foster youth, children of military families, and students preparing 
for nontraditional fields. Nontraditional fields include occupations or fields of work, including careers 
in computer science, technology, and other emerging high-skill occupations, for which individuals 
from one gender constitute less than 25 percent of the individuals employed in each such occupation 
or field of work.  (20 USC 2302, 2354, 2373) 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 0415 - Equity) 
 
Upon written request from a nonprofit private school within the geographical area served by the 
district, the Superintendent or designee shall consult with private school representatives in a timely 
and meaningful manner and may provide for the participation of private school secondary students in 
the district's programs and activities funded pursuant to 20 USC 2301-2414. To the extent practicable, 
the Superintendent or designee shall also, upon request, permit participation of CTE teachers, 
administrators, and other personnel from private schools in the district's inservice and preservice 
professional development programs funded through such grants.  (20 USC 2397) 
 
Linked Learning Programs 
 

Note:  The following optional section is for use by districts that offer "linked learning" programs integrating academic 
and career technical study (sometimes called "multiple pathways") and may be revised to reflect district practice. 

 
The district shall offer one or more comprehensive, multi-year linked learning programs in grades 9-
12 that are organized around a broad theme, interest area, or industry sector including, but not limited 
to, the industry sectors identified in model standards adopted by the State Board of Education pursuant 
to Education Code 51226. The program shall provide all participating students with curriculum 
choices that prepare them for career entry and a full range of postsecondary options, including two-
year and four-year colleges, apprenticeships, and formal employment training. 
 
At a minimum, the district's linked learning program shall include: 
 
1. An integrated core curriculum that meets the eligibility requirements for admission to the 

University of California and the California State University and is delivered through project-
based learning and other engaging instructional strategies that bring real-world context and 
relevance to the curriculum where broad themes, interest areas, and CTE are emphasized 

 



4 
 
2. An integrated technical core of a sequence of at least four related courses that may reflect CTE 

standards-based courses and that provide students with career skills, are aligned to academic 
principles, and fulfill academic core requirements described in item #1 above to the extent 
possible 

 
3. A series of work-based learning opportunities that begin with mentoring and job shadowing 

and evolve into intensive internships, school-based enterprises, or virtual apprenticeships 
 
4. Support services, including supplemental instruction in reading and mathematics, that help 

students master the advanced academic and technical content that is necessary for success in 
college and career 

 
Partnership Academies 
 

Note:  The following optional section is for use by districts that have established a partnership academy pursuant to 
Education Code 54690-54699.1 and 54750-54760.  A partnership academy functions as a school-within-a-school with 
a career theme and related academic courses primarily directed at students who are at risk of dropping out. 

 
The district shall operate one or more partnership academies as a school-within-a-school focused on 
a broad career theme. The program shall be available to students in grades 10-12, at least half of 
whom shall be students who are at risk of dropping out of school as indicated by three or more of the 
following criteria:  (Education Code 54690-54691) 
 
1. Past record of irregular attendance, with absence from school 20 percent or more of the school 

year 
 (cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy) 
 
2. Past record of underachievement in which the student is at least one-third of a year behind the 

coursework for the respective grade level, or as demonstrated by credits achieved 
 
3. Past record of low motivation or disinterest in the regular school program 
 
4. Economic disadvantage 
 
5. Scores below basic or far below basic on the mathematics or English language arts test of the 

California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress 
 
6. A grade point average of 2.2 or below or the equivalent of a C minus 
 
Ninth-grade teachers and counselors shall identify students eligible to participate in a partnership 
academy. Participating students shall be selected by academy staff from among those who have 
expressed an interest in the academy and whose parents/guardians have approved the student's 
participation.  (Education Code 54695) 
 
The district's program shall provide:  (Education Code 54692) 
 
1. During each regular school term, instruction in at least three academic subjects that: 
 

a. Prepares students for a regular high school diploma 
 



5 
 

b. Where possible and appropriate, prepares students to meet subject requirements for 
admission to the California State University and University of California 

 
c. Contributes to an understanding of the occupational field of the academy 

 
2. CTE courses offered at each grade level at the academy that are part of an occupational course 

sequence that targets comprehensive skills and meets the criteria specified in Education Code 
54692 

 
3. Classes that are block scheduled in a cluster whenever possible to provide flexibility to 

academy teachers and which may vary in number during grade 12 
 
4. A mentor from the business community for students during grade 11 
 
5. An employer-based internship or work experience that occurs during the summer following 

grade 11 or during grade 12 
 
6. Additional motivational activities with private sector involvement to encourage academic and 

occupational preparation 
 
Attendance in academy classes shall be limited to students enrolled in the academy.  (Education Code 
54692) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall establish an advisory committee consisting of individuals 
involved in academy operations, including district and school administrators, lead teachers, and 
representatives of the private sector.  (Education Code 54692) 
 
Apprenticeship Programs 
 

Note:  The following optional paragraph may be used by districts that provide a program of "orientation to 
apprenticeships" to students who have not yet applied to an apprenticeship program. Such programs are sometimes 
referred to as "pre-apprenticeship programs." However, the Department of Industrial Relations (DIR), in its 
publication Orientation to Apprenticeship: A Guide for Educators, notes that "pre-apprentice" is used by some trades 
as a classification of worker and therefore prefers the term "orientation to apprenticeship" to refer to a program offered 
by secondary schools. Items #1-5 below reflect key program components recommended in the DIR publication and 
may be revised to reflect district practice. 

 
The district shall offer high school and/or adult education students a program of orientation to 
apprenticeships that acquaints students with a broad range of career options, provides information 
regarding available apprenticeship programs, and provides classroom instructional job training which 
guides students to a registered apprenticeable occupation. 
(cf. 6200 - Adult Education) 
 
The district's program shall: 
 
1. Introduce students to what they need to know in order to apply, test, and interview for 

acceptance into an apprenticeship program 
 
2. Demonstrate the need for proficiency in reading and comprehension, mathematics, science, 

and technology 
 



6 
 
3. Emphasize the necessity to have the ability to communicate in reading, writing, speaking, 

listening, and numeration skills 
 
4. Identify the knowledge, skills, and attitudes needed to enter and successfully complete an 

apprenticeship program 
 
5. Provide an orientation to a specific craft or trade or to an industry 
 

Note:  The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that contract with sponsors of approved apprenticeship 
programs (e.g., individual employers, labor or management apprenticeship committees, or joint labor-management 
apprenticeship committees) pursuant to Education Code 8150-8155 and Labor Code 3070-3099.5 to provide classes 
of related and supplemental instruction. Apprenticeship programs are offered for a period of one to six years (typically 
four years) and provide specialized on-the-job training that prepares an individual for employment in a craft or trade 
profession. 

 
The district may enter into an agreement with a local business, labor or management apprenticeship 
committee, and/or joint labor-management apprenticeship committee that has been approved by the 
Department of Industrial Relations' Division of Apprenticeship Standards to sponsor an 
apprenticeship program in order to develop and deliver related and supplemental instruction to 
students participating in a registered apprenticeship program.  (Education Code 8150-8155; Labor 
Code 3074, 3075, 3078) 
 
Regional Occupational Center/Program 
 

Note:  The following optional section is for use by districts that partner with or offer their own local regional 
occupational center or program (ROC/P) pursuant to Education Code 52300-52335.12, and may be revised to reflect 
district practice. Education Code 52301 authorizes the establishment of an ROC/P by (1) the County Superintendent 
of Schools, with the approval of the State Board of Education (SBE); (2) two or more districts maintaining high 
schools, with the approval of the SBE and the County Superintendent; or (3) a single district with an average daily 
attendance (ADA) of 50,000 or more located in a class 1 county or a district with an ADA of 100,000 or more located 
in a class 2 county, as defined in Education Code 1205.  ROC/P courses are open to secondary students, with priority 
enrollment given to students ages 16-18 or in grades 11-12.  See BP 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program 
for additional program requirements. 

 
The district shall operate and/or partner with a regional occupational center or program (ROC/P), 
established pursuant to Education Code 52335.12, which offers CTE courses, linked learning 
programs, partnership academies, and/or pre-apprenticeship and apprenticeship programs as 
appropriate. 
(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program) 
 
Occupational course sequences offered by the ROC/P shall provide prerequisite courses needed to 
enter apprenticeship or postsecondary vocational certificate or degree programs, focus on occupations 
requiring comprehensive skills leading to high entry-level wages and/or the possibility of significant 
wage increases after a few years on the job, offer as many courses as possible that meet college 
admission requirements, and lead to attainment of an occupational skill certificate.  (Education Code 
52302) 
 
Student Organizations 
 

Note:  The following optional section may be used by districts providing any CTE program(s). 20 USC 2355 permits 
the use of Perkins V funding to support career technical student organizations and related activities. According to 
CDE, state-supported organizations include California DECA: A Marketing Association (formerly Distributive 



7 
 

Education Clubs of America), Future Business Leaders of America (FBLA), Future Farmers of America (FFA), Future 
Homemakers of America-Home Economics Related Occupations (FHA-HERO), Health Occupations Students of 
America (HOSA), and Skills USA (formerly Vocational Industrial Clubs of America-VICA). 

 
The district may provide support, including supplies, materials, activities, and advisor expenses, to 
student organizations which engage in activities that are integral to the CTE program and provide for 
the development of student leadership skills.  However, no state or federal funds shall be used to pay 
students' membership dues, food or lodging expenses, out-of-state travel, or the cost of a social 
activity or assemblage. 
(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 
(cf. 6145.5 - Student Organizations and Equal Access) 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation approved: December 11, 2018 



1 
 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
Instruction  
BP 6190 
 
EVALUATION OF THE INSTRUCTIONAL PROGRAM 
 

Note:  The following optional policy may be revised to reflect district practice. 
 
The Governing Board of Education recognizes that it is accountable to students, parents/guardians, 
and the community for the effectiveness of the district's educational program in meeting district 
goals for student learning. The Superintendent or designee shall conduct a continual evaluation of 
the curriculum and the instructional program in order to improveidentify strategies for improving 
student achievement. 
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
(cf. 6000 - Concepts and Roles) 
(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation) 
(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials) 
 

Note:  The district may revise the following paragraph to specify the data and reports that will be used to evaluate 
the district's instructional program. 
 
Education Code 52060-52061 require that the district's local control and accountability plan (LCAP) establish 
goals, for all students and for each numerically significant subgroup, that are aligned with the state priorities, and 
that the district annually review progress toward the goals; see BP/AR 0460 - Local Control and Accountability 
Plan. Pursuant to Education Code 52052, numerically significant student subgroups include ethnic subgroups, 
socioeconomically disadvantaged students, English learners, students with disabilities, foster youth, and homeless 
students, when the subgroup consists of at least 30 students with a valid test score or 15 foster or homeless youth. 
The California School Dashboard reports the status of district and school performance on multiple state and local 
indicators and is intended to assist districts in identifying strengths and areas in need of improvement in each 
priority area addressed by the LCAP. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide the Board and the community with regular reports 
on student progress toward Board-established standards of expected achievement at each grade 
level in each area of study. In addition, he/she. The reports shall evaluate and reportinclude data 
for each district school and for everyeach numerically significant student subgroup, as defined in 
Education Code 52052, including, but not limited to, school and subgroup performance on 
statewide achievement indicators and progress toward goals specified in the district's local control 
and accountability plan (LCAP). 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
(cf. 0510 - School Accountability Report Card) 
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 
(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 
(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 
(cf. 6162.52 - High School Exit Examination6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 
(cf. 6174 - Education for English Language Learners) 



2 
 

  

In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall conduct an evaluation of any new instructional 
program implemented in the district and shall regularly assess district progress toward increasing 
student achievement in all subject areas taught in the district. The findings of such evaluations and 
assessments shall be reported to the Board. 
 
Based on these reports, the Board shall take appropriate actions to maintain the effectiveness of 
programs and to improve the quality of education thatprovided to district students receive. 
 
Annual MonitoringEvaluation of Consolidated Application Programs 
 

Note:  The following optional section should be revised to reflect district practice. Pursuant to Education Code 
64000-64001, the consolidated application is used by the California Department of Education to distribute funds 
from certain federal categorical programs. Pursuant to 5 CCR 3942, as a condition of receiving continued funding 
for these programs, the district must make certain general assurances and certifications, including an assurance 
that the district's annual evaluation of categorical programs demonstrates that each program is "not one of low 
effectiveness." The district does not need to sign or return the general assurances, but does need to keep them on 
file for compliance reviews, complaint investigations, or audits. 
 
Pursuant to 5 CCR 3942, criteria for the annual program evaluation are to be established by the Governing Board. 
The district may consider measures of the academic progress of students participating in the program, including 
numerically significant student groups, in addition to other measures contained in school plans or adopted by the 
Board. 

 
The Board and the Superintendent or designee shall annually determine whether the district's 
categorical programs funded through the state's consolidated application are effective in meeting 
the needs of the students they are intended to serve. As a basis for this evaluation, the 
Superintendent or designee shall recommend for Board approval the specific, measurable criteria 
that shall be used at each school and at the district level. These criteria may include, but are not 
necessarily limited to, the progress of all students participating in the program and of each 
numerically significant subgroup toward goals contained in the district's LCAP, the school's single 
plan for student achievement, Title I local educational agency plan, and/or other applicable district 
or school plans. 
 
Federal Program Monitoring 
When the district is selected by the CDE for a Federal Program Monitoring (FPM) compliance 
review, the Superintendent or designee shall gather and submit all documentation and data required 
for the review and shall cooperate with CDE staff to facilitate program monitoring. 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 
(cf. 0520.2 - Title I Program Improvement Schools) 
(cf. 0520.3 - Title I Program Improvement Districts) 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
(cf. 4112.24 - Teacher Qualifications Under the No Child Left Behind Act) 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities) 
(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development Programs) 
(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs) 
(cf. 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education) 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 



3 
 

  

(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs) 
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 
(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program) 
(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 
(cf. 6178.1 - Work-Based Learning) 
(cf. 6200 - Adult Education) 
In the event that the FPM review results in a finding of noncompliance in relation to any program, 
the Superintendent or designee shall submit a proposed resolution to the CDE within 45 days of 
the date the district was notified of the finding. The resolution shall be implemented in accordance 
with the terms and timeframe specified in the resolution agreement with the CDE. 
The Superintendent or designee shall report to the Board regarding the results of the review 
process. 
 
Western Association of Schools and Colleges (WASC) Accreditation 
 

Note:  The following optional section is for use by districts that participate in the evaluation process leading to 
accreditation by the Western Association of Schools and Colleges (WASC). WASC is a private, nonprofit 
organization whose Accrediting Commission for Schools provides regular assessments of public and private 
schools in order to support ongoing improvement of the educational program. The term of the accreditation process 
varies from one to six years, as determined by WASC. Districts may seek accreditation for both elementary and 
secondary schools and may revise the following section to specify schools that will seek accreditation (e.g., only 
secondary schools and/or middle schools). Districts also may revise the following section to apply to any other 
accrediting agency. 

 
The Board believes that accreditation by the Western Association of Schools and Colleges 
(WASC) can foster excellence and ongoing academic improvement in the district's schools. The 
results of the accreditation process also may demonstrate to parents/guardians and the community 
that the schools are meeting their goals and objectives and the WASC criteria for school 
effectiveness through a viable instructional program. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall undertake procedures whereby district schools may achieve 
and maintain full WASC accreditation status. The schools shall conduct a self-study in accordance 
with WASC requirements, cooperate with the WASC committee during a site visit, and develop 
and review action plans to increase the effectiveness of the instructional program for students. The 
Superintendent or designee shall regularly report to the Board on the status of district schools and 
any WASC recommendations for school improvement. 
 
The Not later than 60 days after receiving the results of anyan inspection of a school by WASC, 
or any other the accrediting agency, the Superintendent or designee shall be published not later 
than 60 days after the results are made available to the school. 
 
Publication shall be by notifying each parent/guardiannotify parents/guardians in writing of the 
inspection results and/or by postingshall post the information on the district's or school's web site, 
as determined by the Superintendent or designee.  (Education Code 35178.4) 
(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 
If any district school loses its accreditation status, the Board shall give official notice at a regularly 
scheduled Board meeting. The Superintendent or designee shall provide written notification to 



4 
 

  

each parent/guardian of a student in the school that the school has lost its accreditation status, 
including the potential consequences of the loss of accreditation status. This notice shall also be 
posted on the district's web site and the school's web site.  (Education Code 35178.4) 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
33400-33407  Educational evaluations 
35178.4  Notice of accreditation status 
44662  Evaluation and assessment guidelines, certificated employee performance 
48985  Compliance with translation of parental notifications 
51041  Education program, evaluation and revisions 
51226  Model curriculum standards 
52052-52052.1 Academic Performance Index52052 Accountability; numerically significant student subgroups 
52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 
62005.5  Failure to comply with purposes of funds 
64000-64001  Consolidated application process 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
3930-3937  Program requirements 
3942  Continuity of funding 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
6311  Adequate yearly progressState plans 

Management Resources: 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
FPM Frequently Asked Questions 
Federal Program Monitoring Instruments 

WESTERN ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOLS AND COLLEGES PUBLICATIONS 
Focus on Learning: Joint ACS WASC/CDE Process Guide, 20142017 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education, Testing and Accountability: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta 
Western Association of Schools and Colleges (WASC), Accrediting Commission for Schools: http://www.acswasc.org 

 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007 
revised: November 10, 2015 
revised: December 11, 2018 


	SCOE NOV2018 OBJSUMM.pdf
	Account Object Summary-Balance
	1
	1
	01
	
	
	
	5
	1000
	2000
	3000
	4000
	5000
	6000
	7000





	16
	
	
	
	5
	7000









	SCOE NOV2018 CHECKS.pdf
	Board Report
	1
	00015073
	00015074
	00015075
	00015076
	00015077
	00015078
	00015079
	00015080
	00015081
	00015082
	00015083
	00015084
	00015085
	00015086
	00015087

	2
	01
	76



	SCOE Classified - 2018-19 Min Wage Increase.pdf
	2018-19 Dec 11, 2018

	Policies for 12-11-18_guide.pdf
	December 11, 2018

	Policies for 12-11-18.pdf
	6142.3_BP_Civic Education_RED
	6152.1_BP_Placement in Mathematics Courses_RED
	6152.1~AR_Placement in Mathematics Courses_RED_NEW
	6170.1_BP_Transitional Kindergarten_RED
	6178_BP_Career Technical Education_RED
	6178~AR_Career Technical Education_RED_NEW
	6190_BP_Evaluation of the Instructional Program_RED




